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Chairman'’s Statement
FREHRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors),
| am pleased to present the annual report of Kingland Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Financial
Year 2023”).

The Group is an established subcontractor engaged in concrete
demolition works for more than 30 years. The concrete demoalition
industry is one of the specific areas of the construction industry
which mainly concerns the removal of pieces or sections of
concrete from concrete structures and the demolition of the entire
concrete structures or buildings.

For the Financial Year 2023, the Group’s revenue increased
by approximately HK$45.5 million to approximately HK$121.2
million, compared with approximately HK$75.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Financial Year 2022”). The
Group recorded a net profit of approximately HK$1.3 million in the
Financial Year 2023, compared to the net loss of approximately
HK$9.0 million in the Financial Year 2022. Such increase in net
profit was mainly due to the increase in revenue and gross profit
margin.

During the Financial Year 2023, the Group has completed the
rights issue exercise and utilised the net proceeds as the general
working capital of the Group. The Directors are of the view that (i)
the net proceeds of the Rights Issue can strengthen the financial
position of the Group and provide additional working capital to the
Group; and (i) the Rights Issue also represents good opportunities
to broaden the capital base of the Company.

2023 marked a gradual recovery for Hong Kong from the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic. However, the Hong Kong economy
continues to face ongoing weakness due to various factors. In light
of this, our Group is approaching the coming year with cautious
optimism. We will focus on controlling costs and actively seeking
new opportunities in the market.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to express my respect
and appreciation to my fellow Board members, management
team and staff members for their continued effort to our Group’s
development and build value to our customers, and express my
sincere gratitude to shareholders (the “Shareholders”) for their
persistent support.

Cheung Shek On
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group’s principal activity is the provision of concrete demolition
services in Hong Kong and Macau mainly as a subcontractor. Our
services are mainly required in the removal of pieces or sections
of concrete from concrete structures and the demolition of the
entire concrete structures or buildings by applying a variety of
methods, such as core drilling, sawing and crushing. Our services
are required in many different situations including, among others,
addition and alteration works and redevelopment projects in
buildings, roads, tunnels and underground facilities.

We have been operating in the concrete demolition industry in
Hong Kong since 1985. We have also been providing concrete
demolition services in Macau since 2006. We are a registered
subcontractor for general demolition and other (concrete coring
and saw cutting) works under the Subcontractor Registration
Scheme of the Construction Industry Council and a Registered
Minor Works Contractor at the Buildings Department.

In general, our customers are main contractors in various types
of construction and civil engineering projects in Hong Kong and
construction projects in Macau. We undertake jobs in both public
and private sectors. Public sector jobs refer to jobs which the
main contractors are employed by the Hong Kong Government,
the Macau Government or their respective related organisations
or corporations, while private sector jobs refer to jobs that are not
public sector jobs.

Following the lifting of all social distancing measures by the
Hong Kong Government in early 2023, Hong Kong is gradually
returning to normalcy. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on
our Group has been gradually diminishing. Looking ahead to the
future, our Group’s business outlook remains cautiously optimistic,
considering the ongoing challenges faced by the Hong Kong
economy. In response to these circumstances, we will maintain a
vigilant focus on cost control measures and operational efficiency.
By closely monitoring our expenses and optimising our resources,
we will strive to improve profitability while ensuring the delivery of
high-quality services to our clients.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WKk D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Financial Year 2023, all of our Group’s revenue was
derived from concrete demolition business in Hong Kong. The
Group’s revenue for the Financial Year 2023 was approximately
HK$121.2 million, representing an increase of approximately
60.1% from approximately HK$75.7 million for the Financial Year
2022. The increase is mainly due to the revenue generated from
the substantial completion of certain sizable projects during the
Financial Year 2023.

Our Group’s gross profit increased from approximately HK$16.7
million for the Financial Year 2022 to approximately HK$29.5
million for the Financial Year 2023, and the gross profit margin for
our Group slightly increased from approximately 22.1% for the
Financial Year 2022 to approximately 24.3% for the Financial Year
2023, representing a steady improvement.

Administrative and other operating expenses increased by
approximately HK$3.4 million (representing an increase of
approximately 13.5%) to approximately HK$28.5 million for the
Financial Year 2023, compared with HK$25.1 million for the
Financial Year 2022, which was mainly due to the increase in
indirect staff costs.

The Group recognised approximately HK$0.8 million of reversal
of impairment losses on financial assets and contract assets for
the Financial Year 2023 (the Financial Year 2022: approximately
HK$1.8 million of provision for impairment losses).

The Group recorded a net profit of approximately HK$1.3
million for the Financial Year 2023, compared to the net loss of
approximately HK$9.0 million for the Financial Year 2022. The
increase in net profit was mainly due to the increases in revenue
and gross profit margin.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 1.3 (31 December 2022: approximately 0.9).
The Group had total assets of approximately HK$71.5 million,
which are financed by total liabilities and shareholders’ equity of
approximately HK$48.1 million (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$52.5 million) and HK$23.4 million (31 December 2022:
approximately HK$8.3 million), respectively. As at 31 December
2023, the Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$11.9 million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$3.6
million). As at 31 December 2023, the Group had interest-bearing
debts of approximately HK$20.5 million, which included bank
and other borrowings and lease liabilities (31 December 2022:
approximately HK$23.7 million).

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio is calculated based on the total loans and
borrowings and lease liabilities divided by total equity as at the
respective reporting date. As at 31 December 2023, the Group
recorded a gearing ratio of approximately 87.6% (31 December
2022: approximately 286.7%).

Capital Expenditure

During the Financial Year 2023, there was a capital expenditure of
approximately HK$0.9 million which was used in the purchase of
property, plant and equipment, compared to HK$0.1 million for the
Financial Year 2022.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach in capital management
towards its treasury policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure
to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and
evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Macau and Hong Kong with most of
the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions principally
denominated in HK$ and Macau Pataca (“MOP”). The Group is
exposed to currency risk arising from currency exposures primarily
with respect to MOP, mainly attributable to the exposure on
outstanding receivables and payables denominated in MOP.

Most of the MOP denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
the end of the Financial Year 2023 are held under the Group’s
subsidiary in Macau. As MOP is pegged to HK$, the foreign
currency risk is considered insignificant, and hence the Group
does not engage in any hedging activity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WKk D

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES
The share capital of the Group only comprises of ordinary shares.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s issued share capital
was HK$12,096,000 (31 December 2022: HK$8,064,000) and
the number of its issued ordinary shares was 241,920,000 (31
December 2022: 806,400,000) of HK$0.05 each (31 December
2022: HK$0.01 each).

On 17 May 2023, the Company implemented the increase in
authorised share capital of the Company from HK$10,000,000
divided into 1,000,000,000 shares to HK$20,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 shares by the creation of an additional
1,000,000,000 new unissued shares.

On 17 May 2023, the Company implemented the share
consolidation on the basis that every five issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one consolidated
share of the Company of HK$0.05 each.

On 29 June 2023, the Company completed a rights issue and
issued 80,640,000 rights shares at a subscription price of
HK$0.185 per rights share on the basis of one rights share for
every two existing shares held by the qualifying shareholders
on the record date (the “Rights Issue”), and the net proceeds
of the Rights Issue, after deducting the related expenses, were
approximately HK$13.8 million. Details of the Rights Issue are set
forth in the announcements dated 6 April 2023, 28 April 2023,
16 June 2023 and 28 June 2023, and prospectus dated 31 May
2023.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

The net proceeds from the Rights Issue amounted to
approximately HK$13.8 million. The below table sets out the
intended use of net proceeds and utilisation of the net proceeds as
at 31 December 2023:
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REBMRAEREBRAX

R-ZE-_=ZF+_A=+—HB AQAESHTRAA
12,096,000 T (ZE-—F+=-A=+—0 : 8,064,000 7T) -
DRITEEEA A£241,920000 (T —F+-/F=+—
H : 806,400,000/%) R EE0SEBE L (ZE-_—_F+_A
=+—8: 8RM\@AENIETL) -

RZTEZ=FRA+tH ARQAEBEK1,000,000,000
BEARBEITHR  BARRBETERAHT0,000,000% T
(% /1,000,000,000 % % 1) #& 1 & 20,000,000 7T (9 &
2,000,000,000 B&R& 1) °
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8 8 5 % fE AR AR 1 0.185 7 7T % 17 80,640,000 A% ft AR AR 17 ([
B&]) - mEEIR R AT B R IEFE (KR EERI %) N A1388
BET HREEHNENA-_ZE_=FMAXE 2=
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Amount Balance
of the net of the net
proceeds proceeds

utilised unutilised

Intended as at as at
use of net 31 December 31 December
proceeds 2023 2023
R-B-=F R-BE-=HF

+=A t=A

e E Sars{E =+-H
REN EERME REAME
BERZ REFELE RIBRELHR
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEBT BEAT
General working capital of the Group REBHN—REEES 13.8 13.8 0.0

The net proceeds have been fully utilised as at 31 December 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Availability of construction and civil engineering projects in
Hong Kong and Macau

Our results of operations are affected by the number and
availability of construction and civil engineering projects from the
public and private sectors in Hong Kong and construction projects
from the private sector in Macau, which in turn are affected by
various factors, including but not limited to the general economic
conditions in Hong Kong and Macau, changes in government
policies relating to the Hong Kong and Macau property markets,
the general conditions of the property markets in Hong Kong and
Macau, and the amount of investment in the construction of new
infrastructure and improvement of existing infrastructure.

In the event that the availability of concrete demolition jobs
decreases as a result of the decrease in the number of private
and/or public sector projects in Hong Kong and/or Macau, our
businesses and results of operations may be adversely and
materially affected.

Our business is subject to the risk of cost overrun and job
extension or delay

In pricing a tender or quotation, we are required to estimate the job
costs based on various factors such as (i) the estimated number
and types of workers required; (i) the estimated number and types
of machinery required; and (iii) the need for subcontracting and
machinery leasing. Any deviation between the estimated cost
by the time we submit the tenders or quotations and the actual
costs to complete the jobs may adversely affect our financial
performance and profitability. For instance, if the actual progress
of a project is slower than we anticipated, or if there is any delay or
extension in the project schedule of main contractor, we may have
to engage subcontractors and/or lease the required machineries
for a longer period, and hence the amounts of subcontracting
fees or machinery rental cost incurred may exceed our estimation.
Further, in the case of job extension or delay, we may experience
decrease in revenue derived given that the progress payment to
us is based on works done by us on a monthly basis. There is no
assurance that we would not experience cost overrun and job
extension or delay, which may in turn adversely affect our profit
margin and operating results.

Issue of labour shortage

The construction industry, including the concrete demolition
industry in Hong Kong and Macau has been facing the issue of
labour shortage. The growing demand for construction works
exacerbated the shortage issue and has been pushing up the daily
wage of workers in concrete demolition industry in Hong Kong and
Macau.

If our Group is unable to recruit or retain sufficient workers or fails
to effectively manage our staff costs as a result of shortage of local
labour supply, our business operations and financial performance
may be materially and adversely affected.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WKk D

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Customers

We have established long-term relationships with a number of our
customers who are primarily main contractors in the construction
industry. The Group is of the view that a good relationship with
customers, concrete demolition contracting service providers has
an advantage in gaining new and repeated business. Therefore,
our Directors believe that main contractors generally give priority to
subcontractors with whom they are familiar and who have a proven
track record in providing quality concrete demolition works in a
timely manner. We are of the view that our long-term relationships
with a number of our customers are our competitive advantages
that cannot be easily replicated by other concrete demolition works
subcontractors, and have enabled and will continue to enable us
to differentiate ourselves in the industry in Hong Kong and Macau.

Suppliers and Subcontractors

During the Financial Year 2023, our suppliers and subcontractors
mainly consisted of lessors of machinery, suppliers of consumables
and machinery parts, and transportation, courier service providers
and subcontractors of concrete demolition works. We have
established long-term relationship with a number of our suppliers.
We believe our established relationships with these suppliers and
subcontractors have been enabling us to take up jobs of various
scales and service types and fulfill our customers’ requirements.
This could also ensure stable and timely delivery of materials or
services from these suppliers, which in turn shall minimise potential
disruption to our works.

Employees

Our Directors consider that we have maintained good relationship
with our employees in general. We had not experienced any
significant problems with our employees or any disruption to our
operations due to labour disputes nor had we experienced any
difficulties in the recruitment and retention of experienced staff or
skilled personnel during the Financial Year 2023.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICIES

The Group had 85 full-time employees as at 31 December 2023 (31
December 2022: 85 full-time employees). The staff costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, of the Group were approximately HK$47.1
million for the Financial Year 2023 as compared to HK$36.6 million
for the Financial Year 2022.

Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their job nature,
qualifications and experience. Salaries and wage rates are usually
subjected to an annual review that are based on performance
appraisals and other relevant factors. The Group strongly
encourages internal promotion and a variety of job opportunities
is offered to the existing staff when it is best suited. Remuneration
package is comprised of salary, a performance-based bonus, and
other benefits including training and provident funds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, capital commitment was approximately
HK$0.5 million, which was used in the purchase of property, plant
and equipment (31 December 2022: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, there was no significant contingent
liabilities for the Group (31 December 2022: Nil).

CHARGE OVER OUR GROUP’S ASSETS

Pledged deposits of approximately HK$14.8 million (31 December
2022: approximately HK$14.6 million) have been pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s right-of-use
assets with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$3.3 million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$2.9 million)
was used to secure certain of the lease liabilities of approximately
HK$2.7 million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$2.6
million). As at 31 December 2023, no other loan (31 December
2022: approximately HK$0.5 million) was secured by the Group’s
property, plant and equipment (31 December 2022: aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$0.2 million).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no significant
investment, material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies by the Company during the Financial Year
2023.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have other
plans for material investments or capital assets as of 31 December
2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WKk D

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 22 November 2016 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix C1 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing
the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control system of the Group, nominate and
monitor external auditors and to provide advices and comments to
the Board on matters related to corporate governance. The Audit
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Chow Chun
To, Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin and Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond,
all being independent non-executive Directors.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Financial
Year 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee is of the opinion that the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Financial Year 2023 comply
with applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions
in the CG Code. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the CG Code during the Financial Year 2023 except
for the following deviation:

Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cheung Shek On is the
Chairman and the chief executive officer of our Company. In view
that Mr. Cheung has been operating and managing our Group
since our establishment, our Board believes that it is in the best
interest of our Group to have Mr. Cheung taking up both roles for
effective management and business development. In addition,
major decisions are made after consultation with the Board and
appropriate Board committees, as well as senior management.
The Board is therefore of the view that there are adequate
safeguards in place to ensure the balance of power and authority
within the Company.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors nor the controlling shareholder of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) nor any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the business
of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any such
person has or may have with the Group during the Financial Year
2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

In relation to the deed of non-competition dated 22 November
2016 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) given by Sino Continent
Holdings Limited, Supreme Voyage Limited, Mr. Cheung Shek On
and Mr. Chan Yuk Sing (each the “Covenantor”) in favour of the
Company and its subsidiaries, each of the Covenantor has made
an annual declaration to the Company that during the Financial
Year 2023, the Covenantor has complied with the terms of the
Deed of Non-Competition given in favour of the Company including
but not limited to:

(i) as long as the Deed of Non-Competition remains effective,
he/it shall not, and shall procure that his/its close associates
(other than any member of the Group), among other things,
not to carry on or be engaged, concerned with or interested
in or otherwise be involved in directly or indirectly, in any
business in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the then existing business activity of any member of
the Group within Hong Kong, Macau and such other parts
of the world where any member of the Group may operate
from time to time, save for the holding of not more than
5% shareholding interests (individually or with his/its close
associates) in any company listed on a recognised stock
exchange and at any time the relevant listed company
shall have at least one shareholder (individually or with his/
its close associates, if applicable) whose shareholding
interests in the relevant listed company is higher than that
of the relevant Covenantor (individually or with his/its close
associates); and

(ii) he/it shall provide all information necessary for the annual
review as is reasonably required by the Group, as a basis
to decide whether to exercise the right of first refusal by the
Company from time to time.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed
the status of compliance by each of the Covenantors with the
undertakings stipulated in the Deed of Non-Competition and have
confirmed that, as far as the independent non-executive Directors
can ascertain, there is no breach of any of such undertakings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WKk D

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors (the “Code of Conduct”) in respect of the shares of
the Company (the “Share(s)”). The Company has made specific
enquiry to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that they
have fully complied with the required standard of dealings set out
in the Code of Conduct during the Financial Year 2023.

CHANGE OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of
information of Directors in the Financial Year 2023 are set out
below:

Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Green Economy Development Limited (stock

code: 1315) in February 2023.

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim resigned as an executive Director and Vice
Chairman of the Board with effect from 31 December 2023.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend payment of final dividend to
shareholders of the Company for the Financial Year 2023.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Shek On (%K #5 %), aged 62, is an executive
Director, chairman and the chief executive officer of our Group.
He joined our Group since its establishment in 1985, and has
been a director of Kingland Concrete Drilling Company Limited
since 16 July 1985 (except for the periods from 16 August 1989
to 30 November 1989 and from 31 March 2005 to 30 June
2005). Mr. Cheung is responsible for the overall management and
administration of our business operations. He is also a director of
Platinum Faith Limited, Alpha Eastern Holdings Limited, Dragon
Team Ventures Limited and Kingland (Sino) Company Limited.
Mr. Cheung has more than 30 years of experience in the concrete
demolition industry.

For Mr. Cheung’s interest in the shares within the meaning of Part
XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), please refer to the
section headed “Report of Directors” in this report.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHOW Chun To (3R %), aged 40, has joined our Group as
an independent non-executive Director since November 2016. He
is responsible for providing independent judgment on our strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct.

Mr. Chow has more than 16 years of experience in accounting and
auditing. He worked at PCP CPA Limited as an accountant lll from
June 2006 to June 2007. He then joined HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng (currently known as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited)
as an accountant | in June 2007 until December 2007. In February
2008, Mr. Chow joined Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as an associate
and was promoted to a senior in October 2008 until he left the
company in April 2011. Mr. Chow worked as a financial manager
at Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chiho-
Tiande Group Limited (currently known as Chiho Environmental
Group Limited) (stock code: 976), the issued shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange, between May 2011 and May 2013.
He then worked as a financial controller at JC Group Holdings
Limited (currently known as Tonking New Energy Group Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 8326), the issued shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange, from May 2013 to September 2014.
Mr. Chow worked as the financial controller at In Construction
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1500), the issued shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange, between September 2014 and
February 2017. He was an independent non-executive director
of Geotech Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1707) and AV Promotions
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8419) from September 2017 to
January 2019 and from December 2017 to July 2019 respectively.
He was the company secretary of K Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8475), the issued shares of which are listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chow is currently an independent non-
executive director of China Hongbao Holdings Limited (stock code:
8316), the issued shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chow obtained a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2006 and
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since July 2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEB2BEFE

Mr. CHAN Kwok Wing Kelvin (B Bl 8¢), aged 70, has joined our
Group as an independent non-executive Director since May 2020.
He is responsible for providing independent judgment on our
strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct.

Mr. Chan obtained a degree of Bachelor of Arts from the University
of Toronto in July 1979 and degree of Master of Philosophy in
Town Planning from the University of London in July 1985. He also
obtained a Certificate in Urban Design from the University of Hong
Kong in June 1992 and a Post-Graduate Diploma in Photography
from the School of Professional and Continuing Education of
the University of Hong Kong in June 2016. He was elected as a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Planners in June 1986 and
a member of the Royal Town Planning Institute in June 1986.

From October 1979 to July 1980, Mr. Chan worked with Ng Chun
Man & Associates as town planner. From July 1980 to July 1981,
he worked with Hong Kong Prisons Department (currently known
as Hong Kong Correctional Services Department) as executive
officer. From July 1981 to December 2013, he worked with the
Planning Department of the Hong Kong Government, with his last
position as chief town planner. Since January 2010, Mr. Chan has
been a director of several limited companies, which are mainly
engaged in provision of corporate services and properties and
investment holding.

Since August 2019, Mr. Chan has served in S&T Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3928) (“S&T Holdings”), the issued shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, as
an independent non-executive director. He is also the chairman
of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit and
nomination committee of S&T Holdings.

Mr. TAM Tak Kei Raymond (5 @#), aged 60, has joined our
Group as an independent non-executive Director since May 2020.
He is responsible for providing independent judgment on our
strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct.

Mr. Tam obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accounting with
Computing from University of Kent at Canterbury, the United
Kingdom in July 1985. He has been a member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since August 1990
and an associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants since
January 1995.

Mr. Tam acted as the financial controller at international law firms
for 9 years and has over 30 years of professional accounting
experience and is currently the company secretary of Tian Lun
Gas Holdings Limited (stock code: 1600). Mr. Tam also acted as
the company secretary of Branding China Group Limited (currently
known as OSL Group Limited) (stock code: 863) during the period
from April 2012 to April 2018, and was an independent non-
executive director of Li Bao Ge Group Limited (currently known
Kafelaku Coffee Holding Limited) (stock code: 1869) during the
period from June 2016 to February 2020. The shares of the above-
mentioned three companies are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of
Green Economy Development Limited (Formerly known as Vision
Fame International Holding Limited) (stock code: 1315) during the
period from December 2011 to February 2023.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Tam acts as an independent non-executive director of
Yunhong Guixin Group Holdings Limited (Formerly known as
MEIGU Technology Holding Group Limited) (stock code: 8349)
since December 2016, the issued shares of which are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange. He is an independent non-executive
director, the chairman of the audit committee and a member of
the nomination committee of CNQC International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1240) since 11 September 2012, the issued shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Senior Management

Mr. MAK Banna (Z & H), aged 60, is the chief technical officer
of our Group principally responsible for the overall operation of
our concrete demolition business including tendering and work
processing, quality control and work safety supervision. Mr. Mak
first joined our Group in July 1996 as a project manager and was
subsequently promoted to the current position in December 2012.
Mr. Mak is also a director of Kingland (Sino) Company Limited and
Kingland Concrete Driling Company Limited.

Mr. Mak has over 30 years of experience in the construction
industry. Prior to joining our Group, he was employed, among
others, by (i) Hsin Chong Construction Co., Ltd. from July 1985 to
May 1988 with his last position as a contract coordinator; and (i)
Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited after he resigned from Hsin
Chong Construction Co., Ltd. and up to February 1995 with his
last position as a senior project manager.

Mr. Mak obtained a diploma in Building Studies from the Technical
Education and Industrial Training Department Hong Kong in July
1982. He received a higher diploma in Building Technology and
Management and an associateship in Building Technology and
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1984
and November 1985 respectively. He completed a course on
Construction Safety conducted by the Industrial Safety Training
Centre of the Labour Department, Hong Kong in November
1985. He also obtained a diploma in Construction Management
from the Construction Industry Training Authority in October
1991. He completed the Lead Assessor Examination organised
by BSI Quality Assurance in October 1992 and a master degree
in Construction Management from the City University of Hong
Kong in November 2001. He was awarded the certificate of Metal
Scaffold Erecting and Dismantling Supervision Training Course
from the Construction Industry Training Authority (currently known
as the Construction Industry Training Board) in May 2004, and
the certificate of an Introductory Course on Conservation of Built
Heritage from the Construction Industry Council Training Academy
in June 2008.

Mr. Mak has been a member of the Chartered Institute of Building
since May 1995 and a member of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers since June 1995. He was registered as a Registered
Professional Engineer in September 1998.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Chen Yeung Tak (BR{Jf&) , aged 39, has joined our Group
as a financial controller and company secretary since March 2015.
He was an executive Director from 20 May 2020 to 24 June 2022.

Mr. Chen has over 15 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management, treasury, internal control, corporate
governance and company secretarial matters. He graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts in
Accountancy in December 2006. He has been a member and a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“CPA”). He is also a CPA (Practising) registered in the Accounting
and Financial Reporting Council.

Mr. Chen has worked in international accounting firms and Blue
River Holdings Limited (formerly known as PY| Corporation limited),
the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
498). From December 2017 to December 2021, he served as an
independent non-executive director of AV Promotions Holdings
limited, the shares of which are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8419). He is currently a company secretary
of Kingland Group Holdings Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1751) and had an
appointment of its executive director from May 2020 to June 2022.

Mr. Chen is an independent non-executive director of the following
companies respectively: DT Capital Limited, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 356); Kingbo Strike
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1421); WEIli Holdings Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2372);and Gain Plus
Holdings, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 9900). He also has an appointment of an independent
director of Onion Global Limited, a company formerly listed on
New York Stock Exchange (stock code: NYSE: OG) and currently
listed on U.S. OTC Market (stock code: OGBLY: OG).

Mr. YIP Wai Man (% {2 X), aged 54, has joined our Group
as a sales manager since January 1995. Mr. Yip is principally
responsible for the overall operation of our marketing and customer
relationship activities, and procurement of plant and machinery.

Mr. Yip has over 30 years of experience in the construction
industry. Prior to joining our Group, he was employed, among
others, by (i) Chen Hsong Foundry Co., Ltd. From August 1990
to September 1990 as a summer engineer trainee; (i) Coleman
Engineering Co (Hong Kong) Ltd from October 1991 to July 1993
as a sales engineer; and (i) Mason S. & E. Co. Ltd. from October
1994 to December 1995 as a sales executive.

Mr. Yip obtained a higher diploma in Mechanical Engineering from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1991. He was awarded the
certificate of completion of Metal Scaffold Erecting and Dismantling
Supervision Training Course by the Construction Industry Training
Authority in May 2004. He has also obtained the Construction
Industry Safety Training Certificate from the Construction Industry
Council in May 2013 and the Certificate of Certified Worker from
the Hong Kong Human Resources Ltd. in January 2014.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. TSU Fung Ling (#Bl%), aged 57, first joined our Group as
an administrative manager in April 1994 and left in January 2005.
She has rejoined our Group as consultant from September 2014
to November 2014 and became the administrative manager of our
Group since December 2014. Ms. Tsu is principally responsible for
the overall administration of our business operations.

Prior to joining us, Ms. Tsu was employed, among others, by (i)
Argos Engineering & Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. from April 1988 to
March 1993 as a senior accounts clerk; and (i) the Dynasty Club
Limited from April 1993 to April 1994 as a supervisor.

Ms. Tsu obtained the certificates of Higher Accounting and Third
Level Cost Accounting from the London Chamber of Commerce
and Industry Examinations Board in 1986 and 1990 respectively.

Mr. TAI Cheuk Fung (®l 5= %), aged 41, joined our Group as a
foreman since February 2012. He is mainly responsible for overall
site operation.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Tai was employed, among others,
by Chong Shing Construction & Engineering Co., Ltd. as site
foreman from August 2008 to February 2012. Mr. Tai obtained
a diploma in Civil Engineering and a higher diploma in Civil
Engineering from the Vocational Training Council in July 2003 and
July 2010 respectively. He also completed a Construction Safety
Supervisor Course held by the Construction Industry Training
Authority (currently known as the Construction Industry Training
Board) in July 2006.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Board is pleased to present hereby the corporate governance
report of the Company for the Financial Year 2023.

The Directors and the management of the Group recognise the
importance of sound corporate governance to the long term
and continuing success of the Group. Therefore, the Board is
committed to upholding good corporate standards and procedures
for the best interest of the Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The CG Code set out the principles of good corporate
governance, code provisions and recommended best practices.
Issuers are expected to comply with the code provisions or devise
their own code on corporate governance on the terms they
consider appropriate provided that considered reasons are given.
Throughout the Financial Year 2023, the Company had complied
with the applicable code provisions of the CG Code with the
exception of the deviation from code provision C.2.1 as explained
below:

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
not performed by the same individual. In view that Mr. Cheung
Shek On has been operating and managing our Group since our
establishment in 1985, our Board believes that it is in the best
interest of our Group to have Mr. Cheung taking up both roles for
effective management and business development. Accordingly,
our Company has not segregated the roles of its chairman and
chief executive officer as required by code provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code.

BUSINESS STRATEGIES AND CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board has established the Company’s mission and values
to integrate environmental protection, social responsibility and
sustainable growth in business strategies to provide environmental
friendly, high efficiency and safe professional services to clients.

A healthy corporate culture across the Group is vital for the
Company to achieve its mission and value. It is the Board’s role to
foster the Group’s culture with integrity and accountability to guide
the behaviours of its employees, and ensure that the Company’s
mission, values and business strategies are aligned to it.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group’s overall strategies, the setting of management targets and
supervision of management performance. The management is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for
the management and administration of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board
committees of the Company (the “Board Committees”). Further
details of the Board Committees are set out in this report.
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Composition of the Board

Up to the date of this report, the Board comprises four Directors,
including one executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors (“INEDs”). In particular, the composition of the
Board is set out as follow:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the
Board and Compliance Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chow Chun To
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Board consisted of three INEDs during the Financial
Year 2023, with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. During the Financial Year 2023 and as
of the date of this report, the number of INEDs represents more
than one-third of the Board as required under the Listing Rules.
As such, there is a strong independent element in the Board to
provide independent judgement.

FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board supervises the management of the business and
affairs of the Company and ensures that it is managed in the
best interests of the Shareholders as a whole while taking into
account the interest of other stakeholders. The Board is primarily
responsible for formulating the business strategy, reviewing and
monitoring the business performance of the Group, approving
the financial statements and annual budgets as well as directing
and supervising the management of the Company. Execution
of operational matters and the powers thereof are delegated to
the management by the Board with clear directions. The Board
is regularly provided with management update report to give a
balanced and understandable assessment of the performance,
position, recent development and prospect of the Group in
sufficient details.

The Board has reviewed and discussed the corporate governance
policy of the Group and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the
corporate governance policy.

With the various experience of both the executive Directors and
the INEDs and in view of the nature of the Group’s business, the
Board considered that the Directors have a balance of skills and
experience for the business of the Group.
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TERMS OF APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Company has signed a letter of appointment with each of the
INEDs for a term of three years, which may be terminated earlier
by no less than one month written notice served by either party on
the other.

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), one-third of the Directors shall retire
from office by rotation at each annual general meeting and every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every 3 years. However, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election.

Specific enquiry has been made by the Company to each of the
INEDs to confirm their independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company has received positive confirmations
from all three INEDs. Based on the confirmations received, the
Company considers all the INEDs to be independent under the
Listing Rules.

RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE BOARD

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this report.

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well
as the operation and financial performance of our Group. Directors
may participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

During the Financial Year 2023, the Board had held four meetings,
one annual general meeting and one extraordinary general
meeting. The attendance of the respective Directors at the Board
meetings and general meetings are set out below:
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Attendance/
Attendance/ Numbers of
Numbers of Board general meeting
meetings during during the
the Financial Financial
Year 2023 Year 2023
R=-BZ=F R=ZBZ=F
BREER HMBEER
HEEERE HESERE
EEESEARE BRRAERHE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chairman) KPR E (FE) 4/4 2/2
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (Vice Chairman) SR atfE S (B E /) 4/4 2/2
(resigned on 31 December 2023) (R=Z2==%+=A
=t-BEI)

Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYKBITES
Mr. Chow Chun To BRELE 4/4 2/2
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin PR Y SR ST A 4/4 2/2
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond R L 4/4 2/2
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CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
set out in the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 of the
Listing Rules as the Code of Conduct. After specific enquiries by
the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard of dealings set out in the
Code of Conduct during the Financial Year 2023.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

The Group acknowledges the importance of adequate and ample
continuing professional development for the Directors for a sound
and effective internal control system and corporate governance.
In this regard, the Group has always encouraged our Directors
to attend relevant training courses to receive the latest news and
knowledge regarding corporate governance.

During the Financial Year 2023, each Director had participated
in continuous professional development by attending seminars/
workshops or by reading materials to update and refresh his skill
and knowledge necessary for the performance of his duty. All
Directors have also provided the Company a record of the training
they received. The Company will, if necessary, provide timely and
regular trainings to the Directors to ensure that they keep abreast
with the current requirements under the Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a number of functional committees
in compliance with the relevant Listing Rules and to assist the
Board to discharge its duties. Currently, three committees have
been established, i.e. the Audit Committee, the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”). The functions and
responsibilities of these committees have been set out in the
relevant terms of reference which are of no less stringent than that
stated in the CG Code. The relevant terms of reference of each
of the three committees can be found on the Company’s website
(www.kinglandgroup.com.hk). All committees have been provided
with sufficient resources and support from the Group to discharge
their duties.

Audit Committee

We have established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution
of our Directors passed on 22 November 2016 and with the written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary
duties of our Audit Committee are, among other things, (i) to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment and removal of
external auditors; (i) to review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting process of our Group; (i)
to oversee the internal control systems of our Group; and (iv) to
oversee the corporate governance procedures and practices. The
Audit Committee currently consists of all three INEDs, namely Mr.
Chow Chun To, Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin and Mr. Tam Tak Kei
Raymond. Mr. Chow Chun To who has the appropriate accounting
and financial related management expertise, is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.
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During the Financial Year 2023, the Audit Committee had reviewed
the Group’s unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2023 and discussed internal controls and financial reporting
matters. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this report, and
confirmed that this report complies with the applicable standard,
the Listing Rules, and other applicable legal requirements and that
adequate disclosures have been made. There is no disagreement
between the Directors and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection and appointment of the external auditors.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Board is of the view that
the Audit Committee has properly discharged its duties and
responsibilities during the Financial Year 2023 and up to the date
of this report.

During the Financial Year 2023, the Audit Committee had held
three meetings. The attendance records of the members of the
Audit Committee during the Financial Year 2023 are summarised
below:
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Attendance/Number of meetings
during the Financial Year 2023
R-ZBZ=ZFHERFER

HESERE SEAH
Mr. Chow Chun To (Chairman) B 5%5‘a$ (/) 3/3
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin B 3/3
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond e 1&5‘6% 3/3

Remuneration Committee

We have established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of our Directors passed on 22 November 2016 and with
the written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, among
other things, (i) to review and make recommendations to our Board
on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of our Group; (i) to review and
approve other remuneration-related matters, including benefits-in-
kind and other compensation payable to our Directors and senior
management; and (i) to review and approve performance-based
remuneration and to establish a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy in relation to remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee currently consists of an executive Director, namely
Mr. Cheung Shek On, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Tam Tak Kei
Raymond and Mr. Chow Chun To. Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee has reviewed the remuneration packages and
emoluments of Directors and senior management and considered
that they are fair and reasonable during the Financial Year 2023.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Board is of the view that the
Remuneration Committee has properly discharged its duties and
responsibilities during the Financial Year 2023 and up to the date
of this report.
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During the Financial Year 2023, the Remuneration Committee had
held two meetings. The attendance records of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are summarised below:
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RECZ_=FURFERN FHEZESCBITMREE - HFMH
ZEEgREZHELSERmT

Attendance/Number of meeting
during the Financial Year 2023
R-IB-=EHHEER

HESBE SR
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond (Chairman) EEM LA (E) 2/2
Mr. Cheung Shek On KPR AE 2/2
Mr. Chow Chun To PIRBLE 2/2

Remuneration of Directors and senior management

Our Directors and senior management receive compensation
in the form of salaries, allowances, bonuses and other benefits-
in-kind, including our contribution to the pension scheme. The
Remuneration Committee determines the salaries of our Directors
based on each Director’s qualification, position and seniority.

Nomination Committee

We have established the Nomination Committee pursuant to a
resolution of our Directors passed on 22 November 2016 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, among
other things, (i) to review the structure, size and composition of
our Board on a regular basis; (i) to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and to select or make
recommendations to our Board on the selection of individuals for
nomination of directorships of the Company; (iii) to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) to
make recommendations to our Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The Nomination
Committee currently consists of one executive Director, namely Mr.
Cheung Shek On, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Chow Chun To and
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin. Mr. Cheung Shek On is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

During the Financial Year 2023, the Nomination Committee had
held one meeting. The attendance records of the members of the
Nomination Committee are summarised below:
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BEKE i FRsgtmT

Attendance/

Number of meeting during
the Financial Year 2023
REBZ=ZFUBRFER

HESBXE EBRH™
Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chairman) KL E (EE) 1/1
Mr. Chow Chun To BIRELE 1/1
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin PR B 48 50 A 11

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the nomination procedures for selecting
candidates for election as Directors. Such policy is adopted by the
Board and managed by the Nomination Committee.
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The Nomination Committee may put forward candidates who are
not nominated by Board members. The factors which would be
used as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate for Director include, inter
alia, character and integrity, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy, wilingness to devote adequate
time to discharge duties as Board member and other directorships
and significant commitments, diversity of the Board, and such
other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business. The
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve a sustainable and balanced development
of the Company and also to enhance the quality of performance
of the Company. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, industry experience, technical and professional skills
and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to be
devoted as a Director. The Company will also take into account
factors relating to its own business model and specific needs from
time to time.

The Company currently has four male Directors. The Company is
conscious of maintaining Board diversity with an appropriate level
of female members on the Board, and the Nomination Committee
will use its best endeavours to identify and recommend at least
one suitable female candidate to the Board for its consideration on
appointment of a Director by 31 December 2024. While conscious
efforts are being taken by the Company to fulfil the board diversity
policy of the Company, the ultimate decision is based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The gender ratio (male to female) in the workforce (including
senior management) for Reporting Period is 14:3. As general
demolition works involve physical labour, a majority workforce is
normally composed of male employees. However, the Group has
committed itself to striking a balance between male and female
employees in its working environment, and to providing equal
opportunities to employees of different genders. For further details
of gender ratio, please refer to the disclosure in the Environmental,
Social and Governance report.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year
2023 to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flows for that year. The Directors
continue to adopt appropriate accounting policies and apply them
consistently, make judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable and prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The responsibilities of the external auditors about
their financial reporting are set out in the independent auditors’
report attached to the Company’s financial statements for the
Financial Year 2023 set out in this report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Financial Year 2023, the Group engaged HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”) as the Group’s external auditors to
conduct audit of the financial results of the Group for the Financial
Year 2023 with the remuneration payable of HK$690,000.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board must ensure that the Company establishes
and maintains effective risk management and internal control
systems to meet the objectives and safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Company.

The Board oversees the Group’s overall risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. At the same time, the
Group endeavors to identify risks, control impact of the identified
risks and facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating
measures. The risk management and internal control systems are
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO) — Integrated Framework 2013
principles. They are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failures in order to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group has established a risk management policy which sets
out the process of identification, evaluation and management of
the principal risks affecting the business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and assessing
principal risks within its divisions (including ESG risks) on a
quarterly basis and establishing mitigation plans to manage
the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control activities, attending
quarterly meetings with each division to ensure principal
risks are properly managed, and new or changing risks are
identified and documented.

& The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

The risk management framework, coupled with our internal
controls, ensures the risk associated with our different business
units are effectively controlled in line with the Group’s risk appetite.

The Group does not have an internal audit department. The
Group, yet has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an internal audit department. Given the Group’s relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department,
the Board, as supported by the Audit Committee, is directly
responsible for risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

R B A 5 A

BEITMERAER

JeE e R e P BB BE 4

E=gRAEY #ENEEAKENREREERAIREESE
EEQARRARRRIRARERERER XA IPEIEHE -
LAER B RURERRF SR AR B EE -

o

EXeRAEEASENERAREERANBEEZRR -
B ASBBAOBAER FHABRR X ERREE
D15 T AT 4B FE BE o BB B IR K N B BE 12 R AR AT & Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) —
Integrated Framework 2013 {#RAIER (ZT—=F))RA| - &
BIRAIE B E R (MIEER) ReLED XK B FHER - REA
RTBEERNRERMFBREL SR (MIFRE) HRE -

AEECHTRRERERR  ETHAHUFEXRTNIZRAR
Z#A - FHE R ETRBIR -

1. BHMBERSEZEZINEFEEMRANIERR (F
RE @ ORRER) - WREFETRAEEMER
Z B -

2. EREEAEEZASEMNREREERAMEIEREE M
ZHMPACHFESRAEREZEEEIERARIT FH A R
OSBRI RE LR -

3. EFgLEENRRELELERREERARBEZERR
AR A B -

Rl EIRERER AR EERERTRERN 2 ARRERE
B 2 [\ B A B2 T115 DA R R

v

AEEWEAPEAI - ARECHEAETEFEZANRE

i

+ 4
PIETFEEN - BERASEH AR RS BRBHUHE - ¥
RHEBERRTENNABRH B EEREBREER
M TEERRAEENRREERABERRS LB
AR -

SBREEEZERARAR —2O=FFERE

27



28

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Group engaged an external consultant, Premier Advisory
Services Limited, for internal control to conduct review on the
internal control system of the Group during the Financial Year
20283. The review covers certain procedures on the provision of
concrete demolition services in Hong Kong and Macau, and makes
recommendations for improving and strengthening the internal
control system. No significant area of concemn that may affect the
financial, operational, compliance, control and risk management of
the Group has been identified.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the adequacies of
resources, staff qualifications and experience training programs
and budget of accounting and financial reporting function as well
as those relating to our ESG performance and reporting. The
Board concluded that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems were in place and effective.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information,
the Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of inside information
with the aim to ensure the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality
requirement and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.

The Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to help mitigate
legal, financial, operational and reputational risk. This policy aims
to encourage our people and third parties to come forward and
report suspected wrongdoing and to provide necessary guidance
and assurance to anyone who reports suspected wrongdoing.
All complaints under the Whistleblowing Policy are properly
investigated and addressed to ensure that prompt remedial action
is taken where appropriate. Any reporting under this policy can
be done confidentially through multiple channels that allow for
anonymous reporting.

We require compliance with all applicable anti-bribery and
corruption laws in all markets and jurisdictions in which we operate.
We set a high standard anti-bribery and corruption policy, which
also focuses on the spirit of relevant laws and regulations to help
demonstrate our commitment to ethical behaviours and conduct
as part of our environmental, social and corporate governance.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of SFO and the Listing
Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as
soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the
information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the
information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that
the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or
that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group is
committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or
misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023

AEERAFEERBINERER SR EARB AR FIARA
SER T _—FUPRFEANABERRGETEN -BH
EHNBERTERMRMBERIIFHRBNETIEF - Tt
W& R INR AR EE R R 2R -SRI (B AR B TS -
BE AR ERERAREBERYEZEAME -

AEENRBRERRAEERSERIEEIE (MIEHR) REEE
AXBEENRR  RETNATEEEANRERALEBLRE
HEE(MEBH)MRE - EFTS2EEEHEFER BT
AR REBIIRREAR G M BREAENTRIEARE
RE HEMOABNRBREARE EFEGRRLEENRRE
BN AR R G EI AR -

BFRSERELRFEARHESTH  AEECSRAWEARHE SR -
ERABABETRERE  BRIOTANBHESNRESR

REEFTHETOCRBRER) GFELER MK EERE
B EoER -BRTSBRAERE=FEBRERAIRNTETR
I [ 5R AR TR B AR - BRI AS MR ERAR
BCRRBED L ARG BREERML - ERBRZT
REEBBZERBRREFELRER -

BHMERETETHEEBMAETSRAZEERNAAER
V5 B K e BB - BAIERD BR R B R B BUR R T BB AR -
SR MESHEAERRONGEY  BUEBERMABRTEEE

RERABHEE

AEENEERRBEERDI R EMROHRE - BRIEBEHEE
BREZMPEROITEANZ2E | NBER  AEEEAE
DEATEATRRAARKEARER - RAARTENWKE
HER  AEEBREEBRERE - MALEIBETEERY
ERRETIZEXFELERRTER  AREANERQRBE
HE - AEBEBNBRAEMFEHNHNEREFEL HERK
RERD  RELNBFHMFENTREREL (AFEREER
MEAMNEE) TEEREAZTEMAEMRIRENXD -



COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chen Yeung Tak (“Mr. Chen”) was appointed by the Board as
the company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
since November 2016. The biographical details of Mr. Chen
are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management”. The primary duties of the
Company Secretary include, but are not limited to, the following:
(i) to ensure the Board procedures are followed and that the
activities of the Board are carried out efficiently and effectively; (ii)
to assist the chairman to prepare agendas and Board papers for
meetings and disseminate such documents to the Directors and
Board committees in a timely manner; (iii) to timely disseminate
announcements and information relating to the Group; and (iv)
to maintain formal minutes of the Board meetings and other
Board Committees meetings. During the Financial Year 2023, the
Company Secretary had confirmed that he had taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the Shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each
year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”).

Procedures and right for Shareholders to convene EGM

The following procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM
are subject to the Articles (as amended from time to time), and the
applicable legislation and regulation, in particular the Listing Rules
(as amended from time to time):

(@) Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition;

(b)  The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) and deposit
it to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business at Flat B, G/F, Fu Hop Factory
Building, 209 and 211 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, and such may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists;
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(c)  The requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding,
the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted in the EGM, and
must be signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned
together with a deposit of a sum of money reasonable
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the Shareholders concerned in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered
Shareholders;

(d)  The requisition will be verified with Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office of the Company and
upon their confirmation that the requisition is proper and in
order, the Board will convene an EGM by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the requirements under the
Articles to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition has been verified as not in order or the
Shareholders concerned have failed to deposit sufficient
money to meet the Company’s expenses for the said
purposes, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not
call for an EGM; and

(e) If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/
herself/themselves may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the Eligible Shareholder(s) by the Company.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Flat B, G/F,
Fu Hop Factory Building, 209 and 211 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law
(Revised) of Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles,
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an EGM following the procedures set out
above.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its Shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting, the
annual report, interim report and quarterly reports (if any), notices,
announcements and circulars that are available on Company’s
website at www .kinglandgroup.com.hk.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the interests
of the Shareholder and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. In proposing any dividend payout, the
Board shall take into account, inter alia:

1. the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the other members of the Group;

3. economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group;

4. business strategies of the Group, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the long-
term growth aspect of the business;

58 the current and future operations, liquidity position and
capital requirements of the Group;

6. statutory and regulatory restrictions; and
7. other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate from time
to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The shareholders of the Company have approved the second
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association
(the “New Memorandum and Articles”) of the Company in the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 June 2023 by
way of special resolution and the New Memorandum and Articles
has been published on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HERRERE

PREAMBLE

Kingland Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together
with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) is
delighted to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) Report, which illustrate and highlight our efforts and
performance in achieving sustainable development in both the
environment and social aspects.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has taken
up an overall responsibility for developing the Group’s ESG
strategy and ensuring that adequate and effective ESG-related risk
management and internal control are in place with an intention of
enabling the Group to operate its business in a responsible and
sustainable manner. We are committed to pursue excellence in
construction methods with the goal of sustainable development
and enhancing quality of life of the public. While developing
our goals, we firmly adhered to principles of sound corporate
governance and had carefully considered our activities’ influences
on the environment and society. Corporate social responsibilities
were also integrated into the Group’s business strategy and
management approach.

REPORTING SCOPE AND STANDARDS

Prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide”) as set out in
Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, this report provides an
annual update of the Group’s ESG performance for the period from
1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”),
which covers our operations in Hong Kong and Macau during the
Reporting Period.

The information in this Report is derived from the Group’s
documents obtained and statistical data, as well as the integration
and summary of monitoring, management and operational
information provided by subsidiaries of the Group. The Group
undertakes that there is no false record and no misleading
statement and assumes liabilities to the authenticity, accuracy and
completeness of its content. The Board acknowledges the overall
responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategies and reporting and
for evaluating and determining the Group’s ESG related risks.
ESG performance is measured, reviewed and reported to the
management regularly for continuous improvement.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

During the compilation of this Report, the Group has adopted the
reporting principles outlined in the aforementioned ESG Guide, as
follows:

Materiality: The Group has conducted materiality assessments
to identify its material ESG issues to the business. The materiality
of the issues has been reviewed and confirmed by the Board. For
further details, please refer to the sections “ENGAGEMENT WITH
STAKEHOLDERS” and “MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT”.

Quantitative: The notes have been updated with additional
information about the criteria and methods used to compute
the data for the key performance indicators (“KPIs”) and the
relevant assumptions.

Consistency: To enable meaningful comparisons of relevant
data over time, the Group, unless otherwise indicated, employs
consistent reporting standards and methodology. The Group wiill
provide an explanation of the related statistics if there are any
changes to the reporting scope or calculation methodology that
could impact how the reports compare to earlier ones.

To assist readers to browse through this report and to demonstrate
transparency and compliance, a detailed ESG content index
following the framework of ESG Guide was included at the end of
this report section.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board takes full responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy.
Environmental and social issues are actively integrated into the
corporate governance structure through semi-annual management
reviews. During annual meetings, the Board thoroughly examines
ESG topics and evaluates performance. Additionally, the Board
oversees risk management, including ESG-related risks, by
regularly conducting assessments based on national laws,
regulations, standards, and the Group’s operations. Relevant
risk management systems have been established to prevent and
minimize risks that could impede the achievement of business
objectives.
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RIR - HERRERE

ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that gaining a deeper comprehension of the
requirements, goals, and priorities of its stakeholders would help
it achieve sustainable development in the social, environmental,
and economic spheres. To enhance its operations and processes,
the Group actively engages with its stakeholders and solicits their
feedback through a variety of communication channels. This allows
the Group to comprehend and resolve their problems. The modes
of communication used by each stakeholder and the Group are
shown in the following table.

FzEEAE S8R

AEBEBE ERATHREASNEHEINER BEREL
REBEPRENTE RERKERAERAFERR - K
SEEANZABESERER UTERXEERRBEEKEAR
EER AMEHLEEMRE - DM BB EAEE TR
AR - TRIVREFNSAES RAKEERBRT N

Stakeholder Groups Specific Stakeholder Communication Channel
F #5 46 B8 5 48 Bl HENBZEBS BERE
Investors o Shareholders o Corporate website
o Potential investors o Annual and interim financial report
° Annual general meetings
° Announcements and disclosure of listed
information
REZE J A& o AL
J BEREE o FERPEMBERE
o REBFREG
. AN AEREE
Employees o Senior management o Direct communication
o Staff U Independent focus groups and interviews
° Direct workers ° Training and seminars
o Potential recruits ° Regular performance assessment
o Corporate social responsibility and
volunteering activities
B8 . BREEE . HEBR
J BT o B BIE/NE R EH
. BHEIA . 1B R 5 R
J BEES . TE BRI ATAS
o TEMEREEREMEERY
Customers ° Main-contractors o Site visit
o Ultimate users o Customers assessment
®F J AR . AR R
J BEAP . BREHE
Suppliers/Contractors o Materials suppliers o Suppliers assessment
o Sub-contractors ° Quiality and delivery review
° Service providers o Daily work review
° Site inspection
HEs, AEE J MEHERER J HrEmEET
. DEE . B R RAZMRE
J ARG e . BRIFES
J RS
Community o National and local community o Industry events
organisations . Volunteering activities
#HE o 2B I E it [ AR A J TEES
J EREEY
Government o National and local governments ° Written correspondence
o Regulators o Statutory reports and general disclosures
B . 2B & E BT 8 =
. EEEHE . EEMER —MRBEEER

The Group aims to collaborate with its stakeholders to improve
its ESG performance and create greater value for the wider
community on a continuous basis.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and employees who are responsible for the key
functions of the Group have participated in preparing the ESG
report, assisted the Group in reviewing its operations, identifying key
ESG issues and assessing the importance of such issues to the
Group’s business and stakeholders. With the identified material
ESG aspects, we incorporated their feedback into the process
of identifying the material topics, which acts as the foundation of
formulating long-term ESG strategies as well as a reference to this
Report.

BRIB - 8BRS

EEMME

BEREESTIERS E’]E.IEJE&E f]ﬁ//\fﬁ%fa s At
FROAEHE - BYHAKEB HEE  ABIWRIRS Zim
&/uE%ﬂu&u¥1ﬁ£%$ﬂ¥1$iIW%W&W SARRE T EY

2 BHELENNERNRE HELAEER  £HME
‘*E'EE!’JLEEP ﬁdf‘ﬁ%)\ﬂﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁ’]&ﬁ% R AR R
FIERERE HeRAERBAIRE URGREAKENS

Materiality Matrix
EEMIER

13,21

able Development Kingland

Importance to S

1,2,56,6,9,10, 11

3,4,7,12,14,16,17

18,19, 20, 22

Importance to Stakeholders
HAMAMAHER

Protecting our planet RER M A IR

1 Air and noise emissions control 1 JBE SR R R HE A

2 Resource management (energy, water and waste) 2 BIRER (BER - KEREY)

3 Project management 3 HEER

4 Site environment impact 4 THIRBERFE

5 Green office 5 BERAE

6 Climate change 6 RIRE L

Dedicated workforce WMENEE D

7 Occupational health and safety 7 BERREEELE

8 Employment practices 8 BB EH

9 Employee training and development 9 EEHIIRERE

10 Diversity and equal opportunity 10 Lt ETE#RE

11 Protecting human rights (child and forced labour) 11 REAE(EIRAHIST)

Responsible value chain EETHNEREE

12 Corporate governance and compliance 12 TEERRER

13 Anti-corruption 13 RES

14 Confidentiality and data privacy 14 W= R BB AL R

15 Product and service quality management 15 EnkREE=ER

16 Customer safety, engagement, and satisfaction 16 BEFPZE 2HKREE

17 Customers’ and users’ health and safety 17 EFRAFPHREREREZS

18 Supplier and subcontractor engagement 18 HEFRSBEMER

19 Supplier and subcontractors’ environmental and social 19 HEREDEENRERLESES
responsibility

20 Transparent and fair procurement practices 20 BRRRNFHREIES

Corporate citizen

EEAR

21 Community investment and engagement
22 Site impact on local communities

21 R EHESE
22 MIHEMEENE

SBREEEZERARAR —2O=FFERE
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RIR - HERRERE

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

In view of the growing greenhouse effect and climate change,
energy conservation, carbon reduction and minimising pollution
have become a global issue that could affect any one of us. The
Group undertakes environmental protection as part of its corporate
responsibilities, and is committed to implementing different
environmental protection measures to reduce the impacts on the
environment. We also adapt and be resilient to climate change and
the impacts of inevitable increases in extreme weather events.

EMISSIONS

The Group complies with the Air Pollution Control (Non-road
Mobile Machinery) (Emission) Regulation (Chapter 3112), Laws of
Hong Kong, in regard to machinery labelling requirements. At our
construction sites, we use machineries and equipment certified by
the Environmental Protection Department and monitor exhaust gas
emissions. We arrange inspection and maintenance on a regular
basis to ensure optimal engine performance and fuel usage.
Through implementing such measures, employees’ awareness
on reducing exhaust gas emissions has also been enhanced.

On the other hand, the Group works to reduce the amount of air
pollution, which is mostly caused by the vehicles and equipment
that are present on site as well as the dust emissions from our
building sites. We frequently dispose of dusty debris in enclosed
containers and use water to control dust emissions from rock-
bearing, earth-moving, excavation, and drilling operations. Since
wind-blown dust can be especially dangerous for roads, we make
sure that muddy trails are regularly maintained and cleaned up. In
order to minimise route duplication and save needless emissions,
we also advise employees to plan their routes in advance and turn
off their cars when they are idle.

To prevent noise emissions to our nearby communities, we have
implemented the following mitigation measures at our construction
sites:

o set up noise protection barriers and enclosures in the vicinity
of noise sensitive receivers;

° utilise machineries with lower noise levels whenever
practical;

o carry out construction activities at reasonable hour; and

o obtain construction noise permit (if applicable) in accordance

with the Noise Control (General) Regulations (Chapter 400A
of the Laws of Hong Kong).

With the continuation of our environmental protection measures,
in view of the current business environment nature and period of
construction project, the Group has set an emission reduction
target of reducing total GHG emission by 5% by the year 2025
based on 2021’s figure, and the Group has achieved this target
in 2023 and we will put efforts to achieve other targets in the
area of waste management, resource consumption. Our ability to
continuously improve our operation’s environmental performance
is made possible by tracking several environmental variables.
As a means of reviewing our environmental performance and
formulating improvement strategies, we have been monitoring our
resource usage and carbon emissions to help us reach the target.
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RIR - B RRERE

For the Reporting Period, air emissions generated by the Group

were as follows:

RWERR - AEBEFFEEMERERNAT :

Unit 2023 2022
B —E=-= —E-—
Emissions data from usage of vehicles EE & fi I 5u B8 AR 2
and gaseous fuel consumption Bk &
Nitrogen Oxide (NO,) RGP (NO,) kg T 558.32 848.75
Sulphur Oxide (SO AL (SO kg 52 0.98 1.61
Particulate Matter (PM) SERLY) (PM) kg T7 48.57 71.38
For the Reporting Period, GHG emissions generated by the Group RWEBRA - AREBMEEANREREERAT
were as follows:
Unit 2023 2022
By —ZB=-= —Eg-=
Direct emission or removals from
sources (Scope 1)
BEEHRRRR (BE1)
GHG emissions from stationary and mobile  Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne CO.e 530.18 1,972.64
combustion sources —EbHE (CO,) WA IREE
EE RREBRERABER
Methane (CH.) tonne CO.e 0.27 0.92
BF ¢ (CH.) WE—ftixEE
Nitrous oxide (N2O) tonne CO.e 8.46 15.18
2/t =R (N:0) ke &
Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2)
BORMEEE R (BE2)
Electricity purchased from power Carbon Dioxide (CO») tonne CO.e 31.09 29.51
companies Z& bR (COy) 7 = o ===
BENABIEBENE S
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3)
Hib B EHem (B8E3)
Paper waste disposed at landfills Carbon Dioxide (CO») tonne CO.e 3.64 6.01
EEIHHERIER Z& bR (COy) ik e &
Electricity used for processing fresh water ~ Carbon Dioxide (CO5) tonne CO.e *0.31 0.20

and sewage by government department

R 2P P R IR B 7K RIS KBS T SE AR A

B

— &AL (CO)

Water consumption data for our office in based the latest available data,
which covers the period from 1 January 2023 to 23 November 2023.

WE—SLiEE

SHREEZERARAR

EREAIFENEIE BRI RFTE I BHREH —F—=
F—HA—HEE-—F_=ZF+—H=-1T=HI1AHR -

—ECC=FFERSE
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RIR - HERRERE

WASTE MANAGEMENT

The Group’s waste management policy is aimed at minimising
generation of waste for disposal as far as reasonably practicable,
encouraging use of sustainable and reusable materials which
are technically and economically viable and requiring recyclable
materials be separated from the waste pile and reused as much
as possible. In order to gradually minimise the amount of garbage
generated, we will utilise the waste quantities from previous years
as a baseline. As such, procedures were implemented to properly
control the generation and disposal of trash with the aim of
minimising the amount.

During the Reporting Period, our business operations do not
involve in production of hazardous waste, waste generated onsite
is primarily non-hazardous construction waste. We manage and
sort construction waste onsite as much as possible to reduce
the amount going into disposal and landfill. Proper handling
of construction waste is addressed and strengthened through
induction training and toolbox talk given at the commencement
of employment. In addition to providing accessible recycling bins
onsite, we repurpose excavated materials for backfilling. For the
remaining demolition waste, the Group has appointed qualified
waste collectors and recyclers to assure proper and safe disposal
of waste was performed.

The Group promotes waste reduction at source and continues
to encourage our employees to fully utilise all materials to avoid
producing unnecessary waste and to reduce paper usage by
electronic means. Reminders of reducing wastes are also posted
in offices to remind employees to go green in daily operations.

The Group established a waste reduction target of reducing non-
hazardous waste by 5% by the year 2025 based on 2021’s
figure. To achieve our waste reduction target, the Group has
adopted the reduce, replace and reuse approach, in line with
national initiatives and our management will perform periodic
reviews to monitor the progress.

For the Reporting Period, the amount of non-hazardous waste
produced by the Group was as follows:

BERYER

AEENBEEYERRRE ERTREREATERTRERS
REREYOEL  RNSEERRMNLE LT8R
ABEAME YHRESTRRBEAMHEEYHESF  Frk
BEA - REGRER N FTELHE BB LFOEE
MEEREELER At BPEREFAZSENEEDE
ERRE EEREREEEVHE -

RIERA - BMNEBEEY TSI REEEEEEY R
ELMBERNIELBETRERRY RMNBIREHNERE
EEZRMETEENMDE MRV EBEMHIENHE - BBE
9 56 L 3 A A 1T A BRI O A0 T ELAR A8 BE LA RR R I ok i SR pE 2R
MORZERE - RAEMBREHRENHCRAES - BHAEEZED
BEHRANEE - RRSOFHEYM S  ARECZERE
BEMRERREEANRREZS  RERMEEREY

REBHBIRFRME - WEBZEIRES T ERMEM LR
REETVENRE  MEAEFHAARDBRER - FM
TR AERMAERTENEERENAELETTRRR

E=vi
SRR ©

AEBERE-_ZF_—FREENER _T_AFAMBEEEREY
MPB%MRERR  RERMERR  AKREREBEERERD
RARD  BRMBFNABNTE  MRMHEZABKETE
HESUAERERE -

RBERR - AREMELANEZTEZYHENT :

Unit 2023 2022
By === SHSS
Construction waste tonne 11,233.10 5,420.90
HEEREY 48
Construction waste intensity tonne/project 193.67 60.23
BREBRENEE Iy y=
Paper waste kg 758.68 15253825
REAE 5
Paper waste intensity kg/employee 9.14 14.74
BRETE T/ EE
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group understands that the Earth’s resources are limited,
hence judicious use of resources must go hand in hand with
emission reduction. Where feasible, the Group’s construction
machinery sector has prioritised purchasing construction
machinery with fuel efficiency. To achieve and secure a sustainable
future, the Group has established a target of reducing resource
consumption by 5% by the year 2025 based on 2021’s figure.

To meet our resource consumption target, we focused on initiating
“green thinking” to our staff environmental-consciousness
and sustainability in the workplace. Below are some examples as
follows:

° Set and maintain average room temperatures at 25 degrees
Celsius;
. Switch off office equipment (e.g. printers, computers and

monitors) before leaving the workplace;

. Energy-friendly electrical appliances and devices such as
LED lighting, computers and projectors, have been installed;

. Use electrical appliances with Grade 1 energy efficiency
labels at our offices and construction sites to maximise
energy efficiency;

o Regular check and maintenance and ensure efficiency of
equipment and appliances; and

o Double-sided printing and scan documents as electronic
files instead of printing.

Along with energy conservation, the Group manages sewage
discharge strictly and uses water resources wisely to mitigate
water shortages in response to climate change’s impact
on freshwater availability. It also works to lessen its negative
environmental effects. Water-saving signage and notices are
displayed in prominent places to foster water conservation
culture and improve water management in our operations. At
our construction sites, the Group also encourages recollection,
reuse and recycling of greywater on construction sites to minimise
freshwater consumption. For instance, we spray roads and
exposed or loose-soil surfaces with the recycled wastewater to
suppress fugitive dust emissions and for the use of site cleaning,
washing of construction vehicles and car wheels.

As the Group does not consume a significant amount of water in
its business activities, we did not encounter any significant issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

BRIB - 8BRS
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RIR - HERRERE

For the Reporting Period, the resources consumption by the
Group were as follows:

RBERR - AREFEANERNAT

Unit 2023 2022
B —E-= —E-—
Electricity consumption kWh 79,727.00 75,666.21
HEE FERKE
Electricity consumption intensity kWh/per employee 960.57 890.19
HEEE TEN BEES
Water consumption m3 *480.00 404.66
FEKE 707K
Water consumption intensity mé3/employee *5.78 4.76
FKREE SHKREE

Water consumption data for our office in based the latest available data,
which covers the period from 1 January 2023 to 23 November 2023.

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s operations do not involve
any production process, it does not consume packaging materials.
Hence, this aspect is considered as irrelevant to the Group’s
operations.

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

In a world that increasingly emphasises ESG issues, it is our
moral obligation to see beyond the economic aspect and to take
a preventive approach to mitigate adverse impacts on the natural
environment. To this end, we continuously seek to improve our
GHG emissions management, and strives to align with international
and national policies and documents such as the “Paris
Agreement” and China’s “30-60 decarbonisation goal” by
paying attention to the environmental measures in our operations,
and actively incorporate green elements into relevant management
to reduce any unnecessary consumption.

The Group’s environmental policy shows its commitment to
protecting the environment of the Earth. To minimise environmental
impacts concerning our business activities and services, we
would uphold our standards for environmental protection
to the satisfaction of clients, customers and the public. The
Group is committed to continual improvement of environmental
performance. This environmental policy is communicated to all
staff members of the Group and our subcontractors and suppliers.

In managing our emissions, the Group has complied with the
Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Chapter 132 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter
311 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Water Pollution Control
Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Noise Control
Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Dumping
at Sea Ordinance (Chapter 466 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Environment Impact Assessment Ordinance (Chapter 499 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), and other regulations promulgated by
governments and currently applicable to the Group. For the sake of
compliance with relevant laws and regulations, we regularly assess
the environmental risks of our operations and adopt preventive
measures as necessary to reduce the risks.
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RIR - B RRERE

During the Reporting Period, the Group was unaware of any cases RBEHRR  XEBETNBERNTIEFERARLKAZERE
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a major HEp - R FiEnl s kR TS U R EEREEEEMESE

impact on the Group in terms of air and GHG emissions, noise MEAEBBEAFZENERERRERNBER -
control, discharges into water and land, and the generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Climate Change EaR-3 - X4
Focus Area Our Approach
BT &R BHHEX
Governance Board oversight: The Board meets twice a year to oversee climate-related strategies, policies, actions
b=} and disclosure.
EXSSEE EX2EFERAMASE BRERGEBENRR  BX  HEREE-
Management’s role: The Management supports climate action planning and internal policy setting, as
well as coordinating responses to climate-related risks.
TEENAG : EEERHHIREECEBRENRALEER  SHEEHRESEHERR -
Strategy Policies and guidelines: The Management meets regularly and discusses any potential climate change
F B risk to our business. Management will deploy adequate resources and take precautionary measures to

Risk Management
BB EE

Metrics and Targets

EREAR

mitigate these risks. The corresponding actions will be implemented and reviewed from time to time to
assess their effectiveness.

BEMIEE c ERETHETEE TR AMEBEROEEEERKERE(CER - EREFHETE
BRI SRERFAR B AR R % 5 R o BT & TS B it RARFTAHRETTE) - LARHARERCRR -

Physical risks: We assess our sites’ exposure and vulnerability for impacts related to natural disasters/
weather-related events. We work closely with the sub-contractor at site and assist with implementing fast-
response measures, regular inspections and hoarding to deal with typhoons and rainstorms.

BREAR : HMTERMASEEEREEGANLE REEBSHOZENRAR RS - HMHE
WENDBEETNEE  WHERRREREER THRERERESYE  UEHRAMNER -

Transition risks: Impacts related to market risk are assessed in green construction technologies. We
keep abreast of the latest energy-saving technology and equipment and recommend it to the main
contractor and the sub-contractor. In line with the national initiative for smart technology, we work with
suppliers to bring in smart lighting, which uses sensors to help reduce energy usage.

BREE  BTISEREMNTE DR EEE R ETRE RIS T SRR ETRE BT MR
WRBEEER RS BDEHEE - REEBRREZTHERMHNES  BMEHRERAESIAZEEA - £/
EREBEBHM D EEIRER °

Climate-related risks are incorporated into the Group’s risk management framework and ESG materiality
assessment by different stakeholders. The Group will monitor and follow up on both transition and physical
climate-related risks and set up policies to mitigate relevant risks and respond to management.

B EREECEEORBAARNEERORRERERAN  URETRANEE@E SRR tg
FMoRBEE MR AT - REBFERMBEREECHBMNEE RERRRE - I HERFRRIEEEE
BB K 1A) 3R JEB E I [0 E o

Our management encourages employees to participate in green workshops to enhance their environmental
awareness, and continuously assess compliance with the green office guidelines.
BMEBEESBEES NG GURALRRER  TEBTHAFEKECHAEESINER
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RIR - HERRERE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group regards all employees as its most valuable assets as
well as the Group’s closest and most reliable partner in order
to promote sustainable development. As the business grows,
the Group must establish sustainable human capital to attract
and retain talents. With an aim to improve the cohesiveness of
our staff and our long-term competitiveness in the market, the
Group is committed to offering equal opportunity employment
and professional development to all employees and onsite staff.
It is one of the Group’s commitments to build a harmonious
workplace in the absence of any form of discrimination in our
operations.

Throughout the recruitment and promotion process, we value
and treat all employees and job applicants equally. Candidates
are evaluated based on their qualifications and job experience,
whereas irrelevant criteria including ethnicity, gender, disability,
family situation, religion, and political attitude have no bearing on
the process.

A comprehensive human resources management policy was
formulated to support human resources function, which covers
guidelines on recruitment and promotion, compensation and
dismissal, working hours, rest periods, appraisal, training and
other benefits. We offer competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation, and benefit packages to attract and
retain talents. With respect to salary adjustment and promotion,
an annual review system has been adopted to assess the
performance of our staff and used as an indicator for salary
increment. Employees are also entitled to discretionary bonus
to recognise their contributions to the Group by reference to the
Group’s and individual performance.

For resignation on employee’s own accord, the Human
Resources Department will conduct an exit interview with the
resigned employee to provide an opportunity for the employee
to discuss the working experience with the Group. The feedback
received are beneficial to the human resources system, working
environment and future positioning of jobs.

All employees are also welcomed to make comments and
suggestions through various communication channels such
as letters, emails, or by communicating with their supervisors,
department heads, or human resources department. We make
sure to keep the detail of such communications and the identity of
the employee confidential, and to address any grievances of the
employee as appropriate as we can.
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BRI - HERREHRE

Staff Composition BITAMK
As at 31 December 2023, we employed a total of 85 (31 RZZEZ=F+ZA=+—08 HMERGH#8H (=T ==
December 2022: 85) full-time employees, including back-office FHZA=1+—H:85%) 2REE BREYNAEZRMBET -

and site staff.
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RIE - 2 RORERE

EMPLOYEES BY AGE GROUP
BRERASINER

14%

Staff Turnover

In general, subsidiaries of the Group would make proper upward
downward adjustment to the number of existing staff in the
recruitment process based on the scale and actual situation or
progress of the existing sites and the sites awarded. As most
employees on the sites are paid on a daily basis, the employee
turnover is relatively at a high level. Hence, daily workers were not
counted in our annual turnover rate calculation.

Employee Turnover in 2023
ZEZZHFEERK

18%

W 18-30yearsold
182 305%

B 31-40years old
31E405%
2023

— 41-50 years old
—g—= u b

415505%

51-60 years old
512605%

Over 61 years old
61BR A L

BIRK

—RWE  AEEONBATERARBRETEERALER
ISR IR R E SR S A B T A SR B &
ETREE - mRAARG THIERSARSES - BB RBY
RHRES - Fl - S ESFRERARSLMIABFTIA -

Employee Turnover in 2022
—EHREERXK

No. of People Turnover Rate No. of People Turnover Rate
A MK AE K=

Overall = 27 32% 37 44%
By Gender MR & 5
Male B4 18 26% 34 50%
Female g3 9 60% 3 18%
By Age Group RERAE D
18-30 years old 18 £ 30 5% 5 167% 5 125%
31-40 years old 31 E4073% 9 47% 11 52%
41-50 years old 41 E505% 9 56% 11 61%
51-60 years old 51 £ 605% 4 13% 8 27%
Over 60 years old 60 5% A £ - - 2 17%
By Geographical Region R EE D
Hong Kong B 26 31% 34 40%
Macau P 1 v 3 300%
- There was no staff in Macau at the end of the Reporting Period. 3 RIFEAK - BPIWAEST -

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations concerning
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare, including but not
limited to the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), Construction Workers Registration Ordinance
(Chapter 583 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance (Chapter 480 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 487 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

Because of the nature of construction activities, accidents are
more common than in other industries. Hence, the Group has
implemented a health and safety policy. The Group has stated
in its policy that it is committed to protecting its employees,
subcontractors, and the general public from the effects of our
business activities.

We are devoted to providing a safe and harmonious working
environment for our employees. We reinforced our leadership,
management system, and safety training programmes throughout
the year in order to build our safety culture and improve our overall
OHS performance. Applicable laws and regulations such as the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
(Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Factories and
Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Chapter 59 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), and Macau’s Legal Regime on Compensation for
Damage Arising from Work Accidents and Occupational Diseases,
are fully complied by the Group.

In addition to comprehensive directives and interactive
engagement, regular dissemination and training sessions are also
the essential components of our safety management systems.
We publish periodic safety bulletins along with occupational
health and safety news and events information internally to sustain
the momentum of safety awareness. The Group acknowledges
that certain of our projects may include high-risk activities such
as demolition activity that exposes our employees to heights or
confined spaces. In addition to the management’s monitoring of
the working environment, employees must follow labour discipline,
diligently follow rules and regulations, gain necessary first-aid
knowledge, and obtain appropriate education and training at work.
We also conduct induction safety training and safety toolbox talks
for new employees, including companies’ safety policies and
emergency measures to ensure they are competent to discharge
their OHS responsibilities and obligations and respond to
emergencies, so that employees awareness of workplace hazards
is heightened.

Regular safety meetings between project management,
safety officers, subcontractor’s representatives and worker’s
representatives serve as platforms for the various interested parties
to voice out safety issue. Throughout the construction period, OHS
meetings are held regularly to address concerns, share of latest
information and best practices, and identify possible alternatives or
solutions in an expedited manner.

The Group also makes use of regular safety training and
inspections to ensure employees are aware of the importance of
complying with safety requirements. Induction training or briefing
on relevant health and safety policies with regard to their particular
position is provided to workers prior to the commencement of
high-risk activities and throughout the project to minimise the
likelihood of accidents or workplace injuries.

BRIB - 8BRS

RERZZ

HRNREERSHNME  BHNERLEMTERERR - Bt - &
SECERBERZEBER -AKECREBRKTER - HH
IRREEEE  DEBERARRXBMEBTDNZE

BB AEERH—ELE2MEN TERE - REEFE
HAIMREE  BEERGRLZERZIFE - UBLZLZE2XER
RABRMEEOBREREELZ2RR - AEE2EMETEE
e MEFEED) (BEREPFE098) - (EEBMEEN) (FE
EDIFE282%) RATH R TEELGD) (FBEPFE9E) Kk
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ER
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R R -
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DERMENNGEER TR - RERBEENITHERTERL
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RIR - HERRERE

With the increased concern for public health, health and safety
have remained our top priorities. The Group is committed not
only to protecting its staff but also assisting the prevention of the
spread of the virus in the local community. The Group’s pandemic
prevention and control plan and responses are based on the
principles of treating employees’ health as the top priority and
focusing on business continuity. The Group will strive to strengthen
disinfection and sanitisation of workplace.

Due to the nature of the construction industry, the risk of work
injuries cannot be completely eliminated. For the Reporting Period,
the work injury statistics for the Group were as follows:

BEEAMEIREENEZNE  REMZ2NAZAEER
EFZE -AKENMERNINRERE T  MABNREHH
IERBHEE M RNEE - REBENRIEH R EIMEEER
REERBESET ZENRA  XERNEBNEEL - K
SEEBI IR TIESEESME L -

HREERMEEEA  TERREET2E R - RREHA -
REBENTHBRSENT

Work Injury Statistics Unit 2023 2022 2021
TEGH B —¥==% —¥==% —¥=-%
Number of work-related fatalities case(s) 0 0 0
TR T A =
Rate of work-related fatalities percentage 0% 0% 0%
T{EMRBAET X pasd
Number of reported accidents (sick leave > 3 days) case(s) 4 6 6
MEFHRE(RBRZNIX) =
Lost days due to work injury day(s) 818 1,066 2,755
TEEBIBRTIERH PN

The Group did not suffer any serious site safety incidents during
the Reporting Period. We are pleased to note that the lost
days due to work accidents has decreased in 2023 and we will
continue to put more efforts to reduce the risks of work injuries of
employees in the coming year. In addition to providing adequate
protective equipment and implementing aforementioned site safety
measures, the Group introduced new plant and equipment to
further enhance site safety and productivity, such as camera drone
which enhance the effectiveness of site safety supervision. For the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any cases of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group in relation to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Training and continuous development are indispensable to the
Group’s employees to keep abreast of the everchanging trend of
the industry. With an intention to lay down a concrete groundwork
for the Group’s sustainable development in the construction
business, we are committed to supporting the education and
training of our staff. To incentivise the employees to acquire new
skills and to increase their professional knowledge, the Group has
policies in place to encourage its employees to pursue training for
the advancement of their careers that will benefit the Group and
the employees.

Our training programmes span from professional and technical
training to personal development skills, and all of our workers must
undergo an induction training to ensure they fully understand the
Group’s safety and health standards. Furthermore, the Group

BRIB - 8BRS

R R

RERBSEENTERY  HAKBEREM =B RFER
BAANKR - BT EAEEEREXRBOAFEERETRE
AR BMBOXHEINHEREI - REBEEEEH
RERRTEZEEND  AEECHERRIDEERERIR
ERRIBI - KMEAEERERHAZE -

BAIMEIEFT SR EE R RERMIEIIAEEARRXEE - B
BIANABRRABEI  URREETETRAEENRER
REZRE - I AEBBRBRUCEENRERZ 2
BARRSABUENZ2MEN TERE  AIEHESBRIE

SATA R IR IE N R R - BRI R g E R ARRRAT
BHRMIWEETEBARTERE I REBTREAMNE -

provides proper employment and safety training to employees,
ensuring that they have the necessary safety knowledge and
work abilities to deal with situations and problems that may arise
at various work sites. Training materials are updated on a regular
basis to ensure compliance with our quality management system
and industry standards while maximising employee benefit.

For the Reporting Period, the breakdown of the training data for RWEBRA - NREEEIISEBHOT
the Group was as follows:

Average training Average training
hours completed hours completed

in 2023 in 2022
R-B-Z=F R-ZBE=-=
58 R 2 FI B e A
No. of Hours No. of Hours
53 53
By Gender BRI 8 5
Male B 5.72 6.49
Female g - -
By Category BRER B 5
Senior management BREEE 1.77 0.67
Middle management FRERE 7.92 3.64
General staff —MRET 4.65 6.35
Rate of Rate of
employees employees
being trained in  being trained in
2023 2022
R=-=—= R=F==
ZIMEELE ZIWEELE
By Gender BRI 85
Male B 100% 100%
Female g - -
By Category RER &85
Senior management aREEE 6% 3%
Middle management FREEE 28% 16%
General staff —MET 66% 81%
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LABOUR STANDARDS

We strictly prohibit the employment of child and forced labour in
our workplace by adhering to the Employment of Children and
Employment of Young Persons (Industry) Regulations under the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
and other applicable labour laws and regulations in Hong Kong
and Macau. To avoid illegal employment on child and forced
labour, the human resources department of the Group requires
all job applicants to provide valid identity documents to ensure
that they can be lawfully employed prior to the confirmation of
employment. Important details such as job duties, locations
and working hours of the staff are also set out clearly in the
employment contract to protect their rights and interests and
forced labour is strictly prohibited. If child labour or forced labour is
discovered to be engaged as a result of a breach in the recruitment
process, the Group will immediately halt the activity and conduct
an investigation.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any cases
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to preventing child and forced
labour.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

To effectively manage environmental and social risks throughout
the supply chain, we must maintain open communication and
interaction with our suppliers and subcontractors. The Group
employs thorough assessment and monitoring methods to
guarantee that our supply chain is appropriate and capable of
performing our tasks. We keep a list of competent suppliers and
subcontractors based on characteristics such as our client’s
major contract requirements, the quality of materials, work, and
services, and previous collaborative experience.

The Group communicates with suppliers and sub-contractors
regularly to maintain a close relationship with them and review
and monitor the performance of the suppliers and provide
feedback to them from time to time. Furthermore, we require our
suppliers and subcontractors to adhere to sustainable business
practices. We evaluate and monitor their environmental and social
performance in terms of ethical issues, human rights, product
responsibilities and environmental impact, ensuring all suppliers
and subcontractors adhere to our procurement policies. In return,
we provide transparency and fairness in our procurement process
and contractual agreements.

The Group has formulated policies on regional procurement by
giving priority to procurement from local suppliers to reduce energy
consumption and greenhouses gases emissions due to long
distance transportation processes.

For the Reporting Period, the number of suppliers by geographical
region of the Group was as follows:

BITER

HPIE T URBIEDD (BREDESTE) TORBEERDD
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IARIEE R R s - WRRIREE LS8 BI85 T - R EANIRE
BRETPHERTAMBAETREHNSET - AIAKEBGIAK
AR RFAEAS
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HrEEEE
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AEBECHETANREERBOBRE @08 RAMHER
AR A R 3k )8 B B A2 T 32 AN 0 BEIROH A SR E SRS RO BEIN ©

RBERR - AREREEHDHRERKINT

Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region 2023 2022
RitEE D HEREE =2== —2==

Hong Kong aBE 115 99
Macau A - -
The People’s Republic of China RE AR 30 12
Korea 8 2 1
Europe BOM 1 1
North America b= - 1
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group considers customer satisfaction is a key factor to
the success of project management. The Group strives to
understand and integrate customers’ needs into our project
design and planning of construction sites management. Besides,
we endeavour to incorporate sustainable principles throughout
our value chain in order to mitigate social and environmental
risks and safeguard the interests of our shareholders. In view
of this, we conduct ethical business practices, maintain high-
quality for our construction projects, and fosters healthy and long-
term relationships with our suppliers and subcontractors. These
indispensable qualities are the cornerstones to drive better results.

To ensure the Group can bring quality services and sustainable
projects to clients, we regularly control and monitor processes
of the projects as well as adoption of quality management
system (“QMS”) to enhance our services. The system
has been assessed and certified as meeting the standards of
the International Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO”)
9001:2015. Adequate training are also provided to all levels of
employees, to ensure their awareness of the QMS in their tasks
periodically.

For the Reporting Period, we received no complaints or claims
from our customers arising from the quality issues of the work
performed either by us or our sub-contractors, which in the view
of directors of the Company, is attributable to the effective quality
control measures.

The Group is committed to complying with the confidentiality
rules and regulations. Other than carrying out the required work,
customers’ information is prohibited to use without prior consent.
In accordance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter
486 of the Laws of Hong Kong), all of our employees are obligated
to retain in high confidential any information obtained in connection
with their employment. We strictly protect the customers’ data
and information by taking various protection measures, such
as regular security updates, access right control and adequate
hosting and server security. The HR Department is responsible
to observe the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and review our
personnel and business practices from time to time to ensure its
compliance.

We respect intellectual property rights of third parties and are
committed to abiding by the Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), and other relevant laws and regulations,
confidentiality agreements and internal policies to protect all
intellectual property related to the Group and operations. To avoid
infringement of any third party’s intellectual property rights, we
prohibit our employees to use unlicensed computer software or
making unauthorised software copies. The Employee Handbook
also stipulates the code and provision that require our employees
to comply.

As a construction work contractor, the Group did not have material
issues concerning advertising and labelling matters. Nevertheless,
we require our employees provide customers with accurate and
true information on the Group’s services.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any cases
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to health and safety, advertising,
labelling, and privacy matters related to products and services
provided.

BRIB - 8BRS
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group is committed to achieving a high level of ethical
standard in its business operations, and does not tolerate any
forms of corruption, fraud and all other behaviours violating work
ethics. We strictly comply with the relevant laws and regulations in
relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, including
but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

We believe that honesty, integrity, and fairness are vital values that
are essential for our long-term growth and success. As a result,
we have built a strong internal control system to avoid behaviours
such as bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering, while also
communicating to our staff good business practices and banned
conduct such as soliciting benefits and taking presents. Regular
training sessions will also be conducted for management, and
frequent reminders will be distributed to employees to increase
ethical awareness in business operations. The Group has also
formulated an Anti-Corruption Policy to provide information and
guidance to our personnel on how to recognise and deal with
bribery and corruption.

The tendering process is vital to our business, and all tendering
documents are kept confidential and restricted to concerned
parties only. Fairness is needed to protect the interests of the
Group and our clients. Employees responsible for tendering must
comply with the Competition Ordinance (Cap. 619 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), and refrain from exchanging or communicating any
sensitive information with or to competitors, from participating
in price-fixing, imposition of restrictions on clients or abuse of a
dominant market position.

The Group encourages employees to report any suspected
unlawful activity and protects whistleblowers from unjustified
disciplinary action, unfair treatment, and harm. A thorough
investigation of the reported event will be conducted, followed by
disciplinary procedures such as termination of employment and
reporting of the problem to the competent authorities, who will
take appropriate action based on any findings.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any cases
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud, and
money laundering.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

Striving to be a responsible corporate citizen, we are committed to
making our community a better place. We respect local culture and
value, encourage our employees to participate in public welfare or
charity events and contribute to our local community.

In the future, the Group shall keep abreast latest trends and best
practices related to environmental protection at construction sites,
and workers’ health and safety to further extend our care to the
community.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

CONTENT INDEX

The following table provides and overview of the general
disclosures and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) of
various aspects under each subject area, which are either

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R2E

cross-referenced to the relevant chapters of the ESG report or
supplementing the ESG report with additional information.

Description
Hut

BB - #E

BRIB - 8BRS

RABERERI

TERBASETEHRBEIRTAREEA — R ERBRAERES
(TEEREBIER])
HXERARE HEARREZEMER -

WHFIERE 18 KRB REREERS

Reference

2

ENVIRONMENTAL
BIR

Aspect A1: EMISSIONS
BEAT : BB

General Disclosure

— AR EE

KPIA1.1
BB AR IR AT
KPIA1.2

RRAAIEIRALL2

KPI'A1.3

R AR ALS

KPI A1.4

RREMIEIEALL
KPI A1.5
RSB MIEIRALS

KPI A1.6

HRENIETEALE

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.
BABERIOREREHN - MK R T HAIHET -
ﬁE&EEf%%mEiﬁm @BK &
b) ETHEITAEEAXEZNEREZRARIH
éﬂ
The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
BRI iR R N AR R BE PR BUR -
Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
E?; (BE1) RatRAEE (SBE2) A ERBAYEN
EUHFE) R(NMER)BE (MASGESER
BHERMAE) -
Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FEXEEEEYESE UATE) R(WER)BE
(WMAGESBN - §ERMTH) o
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FIEEEEEEDLEE UMaHE) R (MER)EE
(MABESEN - FERMEAHE) o
Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.
HFEI LR ERIE R AERELE
B AR -
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HEBEEREZERYNGE - REMATEI L
BOREE B IR R R E RS B IR ERER 5 o

12 P ERER

Environmental
Sustainability

Emissions
HER

Emissions

PEDX

Emissions

PEDK

Waste Management

REEYEE

Environment and Natural
Resources

BRENRRAER

Waste Management

REEYEE
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RIE - HERBERE

Description Reference

g 2%

Aspect A2: USE OF RESOURCES
EBEA2: EREM

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including Use of Resources
energy, water and other raw materials.

—MRIKER BRERER(BIEEIR KEEMRMED) WK - BEREH

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type Use of Resources

(e.g. electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in ‘000s)
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
RSB BUR IR A2.1 REAESMEER SHEEER(NE - JEoh)  BRER
ﬁ@ﬁi(WF BEFEEFE) REE(WMASESE
B BIEREFE) -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit ~ Use of Resources
of production volume, per facility).

RABEAE IR IRA2.2 BFEKERZE (WMAGESSN  BHERETE) - BREA

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and Use of Resources
steps taken to achieve them.

BASEAE MIEIRA2.3 HIMFEI I REANEEERREIGELEERE BREA
FRERER &) 2 5% -

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Use of Resources

water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

RARE RUE IR A2.4 A REGE R KR E Rl BERERE - ARFTRIZE) BEREA
KU B RN AEDEL B FATRERA P -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products Use of Resources
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

BREBIRIRA2.5 B GATAAEMANAE CAEHE) R (WER) BERER

BEEBMNGE-

Aspect A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
EHEA3: BRERRXRER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact Environment and Natural
on the environment and natural resources. Resources

— MR ER BIEFEITABRBERRAREREXNERZENEE - RERRKAER

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on Environment and Natural

the environment and natural resources and the actions Resources
taken to manage them.

RA SR AR IR AS %ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ié%ﬂ%ﬁ%%&iﬁﬁﬁE’JE/*\?Z%E&E RELRAER
REIERAEZENTE -

Aspect A4: CLIMATE CHANGE

BEA4: RIFE1L

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant Climate Change
climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer.

— R EE BRI N EADERAREEHETAEEFENER RIRE L
RIRHABEEENER ﬁ
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues Climate Change

which have impacted, and those which impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

R EBIE R A4 HABERAESHBETAEEZENERRIKE RIEZL
HEE - REHTH -
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BRIB - 8BRS

Reference

2% B

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

ERREIER

Aspect B1: EMPLOYMENT

EBEB1: EE

General Disclosure

— AR PR

KPI B1.1

RS 4R IR 1R B1.1

KPI B1.2

RS A NIE1EB1.2

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hour, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, other benefits and welfare.

BRI EE BEREA - TIERS - KRE-
FEHE  Zt  REBERAREMEESE LB
@BE : Ro)BTHREITABEAZENREERE
KRB &R o

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region.

IR - BERL FRAERMtEE S NRE AR -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

IR FRAENEEEDMEERKRLE -

Aspect B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY

BmEB2: @EHEZE

General Disclosure

— MR ER

KPI B2.1
RRS AR IR B2.1
KPI B2.2
RS AMIEIRB2.2
KPI B2.3

RRENIEEB2.3

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employee
from occupational hazards.
FARELZE2IERRIAREREHCBEEREE
B (@R ko) ETHETATEAXENHEHA
ERRBOIRER o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
EIERERMPTHAZRRLE -

Lost days due to work injury.

AIBEATIERE -

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented and
monitored.

A FTER AN A B SR R IR 21556 - LA RBRARTT
REERFIE -

Aspect B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

BEB3: HEREI

General Disclosure

— R

KPI B3.1

BE A IR R B3
KPI B3.2

PR AR IR 1R B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description for
training activities.
ERRAEEEIT TIEHE M R EHBUR -
A IER o

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

ZUERIREEER (MaREREERTFRERERE)E
PHXIEEBEDL -

The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category.

BRI REEERE D  BREETKZINFY
S e

Employment and Labour
Practices

BRESTER

Employment and
Labour Practices — Staff
Composition
EEEEIER-BET
#ERK

Employment and
Labour Practices — Staff
Turnover
BELSTIER-ET
R

Health and Safety

RERZZ

Health and Safety
BERZZ
Health and Safety
BERZZ
Health and Safety

(EE Y S

Development and
Training

B R R

Development and
Training

R R EFI
Development and

Training
R R

SBREEEZERARAR —2O=FFERE
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Description
i

Reference Remark

2% B

Aspect B4: LABOUR STANDARDS
BT B4 : & T%#8|

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child and forced labour.

— AR EE BRI IEE T RAGISTH - (@)K : R(b)ETEH

BITABERZENHEBERRBAPIER -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

R AR IR 1R B4. 1 g EEESMBEABRET KEH ST -

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

R B NIRIEB4.2 MR B R B R IE AR ER A BRI 2P 8]

OPERATING PRACTICES
BEER

Aspect B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

[EmEBS : HEHEER

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.

— M E EIRHEGE IR Rt g R IR -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BB 45 MR R B5.1 minEE DN HEREA -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,

number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.

RSB IR IR B5.2 M ERAERHERMNED - mERTERENN
HEREE  URBEERITRERG X -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they

are implemented and monitored.

RN IE15B5.3 st B R B R RIE R AR

B A RBAMITRERTE -

KPI B5.4 Descripti

on of practices used to promote

environmentally preferable products and services

when sel

ecting suppliers, and how they are

implemented and monitored.
B AE MIEIRB5.4 M FERE R EERRE S ARRERRRBH
B A RBBEHITRERTE -
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Labour Standards

4 T AR
Labour Standards

& T
Labour Standards

& TR

Supply Chain
Management
HEHEIR

Supply Chain
Management
HEEHEIR

Supply Chain
Management

HregE R

Supply Chain
Management

e e

Supply Chain
Management

g E R
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BRIB - 8BRS

Description Reference Remark
it Bz e
Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
[EHEB6: EmEE
General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance Product Responsibility
with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
—RR IR FRMEHERNMREHERELSY BS B8 EmECE
RALZEEARBROTER (@)K R (b)ETE
BITABERTZEBNEBEELROINER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage to total products sold or shipped subject N/A There were no recalls
to recalls for safety and health reasons. concerning the provision.
BB 4E IR B6.1 EENEEXEMAHTRALT T EERIBHMA AN iE A WEREHRHELERMNED -
BB B AL
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints N/A There were no validated
received how they are dealt with. complaints received during
the Reporting Period.
BB A IR IE B6.2 BERANE D RREOIRFEE AREE X - i REEBRA - I IS
1SRRI -
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Product Responsibility
protecting intellectual property rights.
BB AE IR B6.3 i RgEE R RENAEREE@ENED - EmEE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall N/A Recall procedures are not
procedures. relevant to our operations.
BB AE IR 1R B6.4 it S 43 F B AR KB fn B WAE P i A 5] W 72 i B P O AR
R -
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Product Responsibility
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
RABEAE IR B6.5 R B EERRE RALBECK - UEEBARTR EREE

BRI

Aspect B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

EBEB7: RES
General Disclosure

— R

KPI B7.1

BRENIEEBT A

KPI B7.2

BB IR IEBT.2

KPI 7.3

R EMIRIZT.3

Information on (a) the policies: and (b) compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that they have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BN LR - 1% - MEFROERER ¢ (@)%
R ) EFHBEITABERTENEREZRAOIN
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcome of the
cases.
RBERANEETASEEERBEYEEENES
:@\%{,‘T’E’]%( 5] &uﬁnﬂzﬂ:% 2
Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored.
Haa e ra e R B MR - ARMBBERITRER A
Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.

ftREERE TRENRESE -

Anti-Corruption

R&E5S

Anti-Corruption

RES

Anti-Corruption

RES

Anti-Corruption

RE)S
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RIR - HERRERE

Description Reference Remark
i 2% B
COMMUNITY

HE

Aspect B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

BEBS: #tEBHRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

—RR IR BRUMEBERERTHRBETAEEMELRTEN
BREEBZDHGE BiLEFI A B

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,
sport).

BB 4E IR B8.1 EIEREE (HE REFEE LTIHK EFE -
it - 885) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.

RS AE IRIEB8.2 EFEISHEMBAER(NSERERE) -

Kingland Group Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023

Giving Back to the
Community
O f8 # [

Giving Back to the
Community

Ol g8 4t [R

N/A

N jE

There were no such
resources contributed
during the Reporting
Period.
REEA - I | E B
BHER -



The Directors hereby present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s principal activity is the provision of concrete demolition
service in Hong Kong and Macau as a subcontractor. The principal
activity of the Company is investment holding of its subsidiaries.
The names and principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the Financial Year 2023.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
review of the Group’s business, a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, environmental policies of the
Group, compliance with laws and regulations by the Group, and
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business,
can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out
on pages 5 to 14 of this report. This discussion forms part of this
Report of Directors.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group, as extracted from the consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the last five years is set out on page 128 of this
report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the Financial Year 2023 and the financial
positions of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 127.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend in
respect of the Financial Year 2023.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group during
the Financial Year 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Financial Year 2023 in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$12,096,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares was
241,920,000 of HK$0.05 each.

Details of movements in the share capital during the Financial
Year 2023 are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Report of Directors
EEEWRE

RERUEER T CEUBFENRE REBRBANE
& -
IEEBREBER

AEBIZEBDIBRERDERNTERBMRIERLTF
R - ARBANIBEXBREMB AR ZIREZR - LB
REAMEHEEZEBHNRE P BHRERME 12 REENE
EEBMER T _=—FUBRFETESAE

EREBARGOIMRORELZEEBNE T TREINT
BREAEEZESDE  ANEB RN T 2R R HE R -
AEENRFRERER AEERRZEZREANARBARAE
BEBARRNATREERAR IR AREESZ14EMHANE
BEMNWEOMPEN R WAL EETEREN 5D

MBHE
BHREARANBERAFENGAEVBERROAEHNE T

BEE EEMNBBEBREENARESFE1288 - ZBMETEX
RERIBHERO D

EERKRE

AEER_T_=FYRFEZEH URARARAEER
ZHOMBARR  BREBNE12TEZEEHBHRRA

EXTESIN T _FRRFERMN RIS -

B

AEER-_Z_=ZFHBRFEVEELES REMIBR -

WE BERKZE

Z!K‘El%% BELRREBR _SE_—FYREENESHFER
RERE MBS MERMFE138 -

g <

RZEBE-_=Z=F+_A=+—8B ' XRQREBEBTRAEA
12,096,000/ T * BT L @R E B A& 241,920,000 8% © Fi%

E{E0.05/;P§TE°

R-ZB_=FRRFEAZBRAEHHBEN RSP EHRERM
190

SBREEEZERARAR —2O=FFERE

57



58

Report of Directors
EEEWRE

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Financial Year 2023 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 73 of this
annual report and note 31 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no distributable
reserves available for distribution to its shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 22
November 2016 (the “Scheme”). The principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme are summarised in Appendix |V to the Prospectus.
The Scheme will be implemented in full with the requirements
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Particulars of the Scheme are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements of this report.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Scheme since the adoption of the Scheme and there
was no share option outstanding as at 31 December 2023. The
total number of Shares available for grant under the Scheme was
18,440,000 Shares, representing 5.56% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
were entered into by the Company during the Financial Year 2023
or subsisted at the end of the Financial Year 2023.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Financial Year 2023.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Financial Year 2023 and
up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (Vice Chairman)
(resigned on 31 December 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Chun To
Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 15 to 19 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in
relation to the Group’s business, to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the Financial Year 2023.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a controlling
Shareholder had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Financial
Year 2023.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years and
will continue thereafter until terminated in accordance with the
terms of the agreement. Non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of three years
and can be renewed in accordance with our Articles and the
applicable Listing Rules.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) has entered into
any service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment compensation other than the statutory compensation.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of its independent non-executive Director in respect of their
independence in accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and all independent non-executive Directors are
considered to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting of the Company, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election
and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at
which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation every year shall
include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number of Directors to
retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer
himself for re-election. Any further Directors so retire shall be those
of the other Directors subject to retirement by rotation who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

In accordance with article 108(a) of the articles of association of
the Company, Mr Cheung Shek On and Mr. Chow Chun To will
retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has taken out directors and officers liability
insurance to cover liabilities arising from legal action against the
Directors up to the date of this report.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors nor the controlling Shareholder nor any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) that compete or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interest which any such person has or may have with the Group
during the Financial Year 2023.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements in this report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration committee will review and determine the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors with
reference to their responsibilities, workload, time devoted to the
Group and the performance of the Group. The Directors and other
employees who have made valuable contribution to the Group
may also receive options to be granted under the Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTEREST AND
SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO)
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to
the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Long positions in ordinary Shares

Name of director Nature of interest
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Number of Shares
held/interested in

Percentage of
shareholding

BE RERER
BEERE ERME o)gvid 4=! BERAES K
Mr. Cheung Shek On Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 39,270,000 16.23%
RiH ek E REZEEE R (1)
Notes: st -
1. Mr. Cheung Shek On (“Mr. Cheung”) beneficially owns 100% 1. R85 % e ([5R % 4 ]) B % # B Sino Continent Holdings

of the issued share capital of Sino Continent Holdings Limited
(“Sino Continent”) which in turn owns 39,270,000 ordinary shares
of the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Cheung is deemed
to be interested in the same number of the Shares held by Sino
Continent.

(i)  Short positions in Shares

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, there
is no interests or short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2023,

other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company, the

following persons/entities have an interest or a short position in the
Shares or the underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in

the register of the Company required to be kept under section 336

of the SFO:
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() Long positions in Shares: i) MKEozEs:
Percentage of
Number of total issued
Shares held/  Long/short share capital of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest interested in position the Company
LERANE
¥E/BA ERITRAE
RESHE RN BEWROME HA KA BEOE L
Sino Continent Beneficial owner 39,270,000  Long 16.23%
Sino Continent EnEEA S)
Mr. Chan Yuk Sing Interest in a controlled 39,269,000  Long 16.23%
corporation (Note 1)
PR EAK S REFEEE#ER (1) TR
Supreme Voyage Beneficial owner 39,269,000  Long 16.23%
Supreme Voyage EmEEA S
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim Interest in a controlled 37,800,000  Long 15.63%
corporation (Note 2)
FApIE LA REFEEENER (E2) FE
Applewood Developments Limited Beneficial owner 37,800,000  Long 15.63%
Applewood Developments Limited — Ezi#EAG A FE
Ms. Luk Pui Kei Peggy (Note 3) Interest of spouse 39,270,000 Long 16.23%
e IH 22 + (B EE3) BB R R FE
Ms. Cho Bik Nung (Note 4) Interest of spouse 39,269,000 Long 16.23%
BERALL (MFE4) B fBRE s 53
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Percentage of

Number of total issued
Shares held/  Long/short share capital of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest interested in position the Company
LERAN
BE#H ERITRAE
BRREH EEME RENERAEE HE %A BENEIL
Ms. Yip Nga Wan (Note 5) Interest of spouse 37,800,000  Long 15.63%
BERELL (MES5) B e
Notes: Kt
1. Mr. Chan Yuk Sing (“Mr. Chan”) beneficially owns 100% of the 1. B E A %t A4 ([FR 5t 4 |) # 25 % 8 Supreme Voyage Limited

issued share capital of Supreme Voyage Limited (“Supreme
Voyage”) which in turn owns 39,269,000 ordinary shares of
the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chan is deemed to be
interested in the same number of the Shares held by Supreme
Voyage.

2. Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (“Mr. Kwok”) holds more than one-third of the
voting power at general meetings of Applewood Developments
Limited (“Applewood Developments”) which in turn owns
37,800,000 ordinary shares of the Company. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Kwok is deemed to be interested in the same number of
the Shares held by Applewood Developments.

38 Ms. Luk Pui Kei Peggy, the spouse of Mr. Cheung, is deemed
under the SFO to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr.
Cheung is deemed to be interested.

4. Ms. Cho Bik Nung, the spouse of Mr. Chan, is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Chan is
deemed to be interested.

(5% Ms. Yip Nga Wan, the spouse of Mr. Kwok, is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Kwok is
deemed to be interested.

Short positions in Shares:

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the
Directors are not aware of any other persons/entities who
had, or were deemed or taken to have any interests or short
position in any shares or underlying Shares as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Financial Year 2023, the percentage of revenue attributable
to the Group’s major customers is set out below:

TEFFRHTER

RIB-_=FPRFE AEETEFFPEENERABILE
FIEnT

Percentage

of revenue

HBRAE D

The largest customer BARP 30.88%
The total of the five largest customers AAREBEFP AR 73.49%

For the Financial Year 2023, the percentage of cost of services
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and subcontractors is
set out below:

RO-Z_=FPBRFE AEEIEHEF LY BEEIEHNR
BRABALLEIIMT

Cost of services
percentage of

total cost

R 75 BR A= A&

WEAREDL

The largest supplier and subcontractor BEAHEBEYBEHE 10.70%
The total of the five largest suppliers and subcontractors AAHEERSBEER 25.13%

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers,
major suppliers and major subcontractors noted above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no material transactions with its related
parties during the Financial Year 2023. The Directors conducted
review of the related party transactions of the Group during the
Financial Year 2023 and were not aware any transaction requiring
disclosure of connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company maintained the public float as required under the
Listing Rules during the Financial Year 2023 and has continued to
maintain such float as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Details of the corporate governance of the Company are set out in

the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 20
to 31 of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group and its activities are subject to requirements under
various laws. The laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group include, among others, Air Pollution Control
Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Air Pollution
Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery) (Emission) Regulation
(Chapter 311Z of the Laws of Hong Kong), Noise Control
Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Water
Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance
(Chapter 132 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group recognises
the importance of environmental protection and has implemented
various environmental protection measures in order to minimise
the operation impact on the environment and natural resources.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATION

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company
and its subsidiaries during the Financial Year 2023.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the memorandum and article of association of the
Company, the Directors and other officers, for the time being
acting in relation to the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified
out of the assets the Company against all losses or liabilities
incurred or sustained by his/her as a Director, or other officer of the
Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal in
which judgement is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.
Such permitted indemnity provision is currently in force and was in
force throughout the Financial Year 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or in existence during the Financial Year 2023.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”) was appointed by
the Directors as the auditors of the Company. HLB will retire,
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM. The
consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year 2023 have
been audited by HLB.

By Order of the Board
Cheung Shek On
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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HLB

TO THE MEMBERS OF
KINGLAND GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingland
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to 127,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Audiitors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

How our audit addressed the key
Key audit matters audit matters
Recognition of revenue and costs from construction contracts
and contract assets
Refer to notes 5 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified recognition
of revenue and costs from
construction contracts and
contract assets as a key
audit matter as significant
management’s estimations e  Reviewing the contract sum and
and judgements are involved related costs to respective signed
in the determination of the contracts and construction progress
outcome of construction schedules prepared by management;
contracts and the progress
towards completion of e Understanding from management
construction works. about how the construction progress
schedules were prepared and
the respective progress towards
completion of construction works
were determined;

Our audit procedures in relation to
recognition of revenue and costs from
construction contracts and contract
assets mainly included:

e FEvaluating the reasonableness of
progress towards completion of
construction works by obtaining the
certificates issued by customers or
payment applications;

e Testing the actual costs incurred on
construction works; and

e Assessing the appropriateness and
adequate of the disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key
Key audit matters audit matters
Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets
Refer to notes 17 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified impairment
assessment of trade
receivables and contract
assets as a key audit matter

Our audit procedures in relation to
impairment of trade receivables and
contract assets mainly included:

BREERSEE EERERBNNEEEEEREE
ESEKRFBERAEERE
2HEAUBRENT17R16°

BRE S EERERE
MEEHKEE B @K
EREREAREHEE
REHEE 5 WA Rk

EERHESREFBEREGNEE
MEZEFETERRE:

due to its significance to
the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and
management’s estimate
in evaluating the expected
credit losses of the trade
receivables and contract
assets.

Obtaining an understanding on
how the management assess the
expected credit losses for trade
receivables and contract assets;

Testing the integrity of information
used by management for the
assessment, including ageing analysis

BRNBEENTABEES
BrHEMMGE - BE
ERESHERUHTEARE
MEEBRD SHRER
=

TREIRENFFGEE S ER
RIEMEWEENERERRER:
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EBRHEMAENNTEYE B

of trade receivables, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual items
in the analysis with the relevant
underlying documents;

e Testing, on a sample basis, the
collection of receivables after the year
end from the customers;

e Assessing the reasonableness of
the basis and judgement of the
management in determining credit
loss allowance on trade receivables
and contract assets; and

e Testing the key data sources
applied in the expected credit
losses computation on a sample
basis by checking to the supporting
information and external data
sources, as applicable.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B A RS

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Mr. Lo Kin Kei.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Kin Kei
Practising Certificate Number: P0O6413

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mreBEakEMRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Reversal of/(provision for) impairment losses on
financial assets and contract assets

Administrative and other operating expenses

Operating gain/(loss)
Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax credit

Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive
income/(expense) for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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2023 2022
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Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ks FET FHET
5 121,186 75,662
(91,726) (58,973)

29,460 16,689

o) 682 1,771
778 (1,784)
(28,490) (25,068)
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ZEREMBREHAKE D -

SHREEZERARAR

—ECEEERE

71



72

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R

As at 31 December 2023 WZZT==F+=-A=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Current assets

Contract assets

Trade and other receivables
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Capital and reserves

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Government grants
Amounts due to directors

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets/(liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities

Notes
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The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2024

and signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Shek On
KRBT
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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2023 2022
—E-= -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
4,611 8,986
8,357 8,326
12,968 17,312
16,762 12,805
15,094 12,556
14,757 14,570
11,882 3,563
58,495 43,494
71,463 60,806
12,096 8,064
11,289 199
23,385 8,263
742 727
3,845 4,432
4,587 5,159
9,651 9,720
2,732 5,907
23,245 24,085
4,250 3,630
- 80
3,613 3,962
43,491 47,384
48,078 52,543
71,463 60,806
15,004 (3,890)
27,972 13,422
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAREBDHE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

Share Share Merger Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
R R EE ROHEE 2 ER R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET THT THT THT
(Note 19) (Note 20) (Note 20)
(B35 19) GEX) GiE)
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_F—H—H
ofe 8,064 64,575 16,313 (71,657) 17,295
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZERY AR
expense for the year - - - (9,032 (9,032
Balance at 31 December 2022 i
+TZA=+—BK&EH 8,064 64,575 16,313 (80,689) 8,263
Profit and total comprehensive income  FREFI R 2 KB
for the year - - - 1,318 1,318
Issue of shares in respect of rights issue 3t {4z 217 Hx1 4,032 10,887 - - 14,919
Share issuance cost of rights issue AR B AR 0 B AT A
(Note 19(0)) (F5E19(0)) - (1,115) - - (1,115)
Balance at 31 December 2023 R-BZ=f%
TZA=t+-BM&H% 12,096 74,347 16,313 (79,371) 23,385
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEBT P s I A % S A B W IS TR WA B 9 ©

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AEHEETMER

For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash generated from operations

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Net cash generated (used in)/from investing

activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in pledged bank deposit
Interest paid

(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to directors

Lease payment

— Capital elements

— Interest elements

Proceeds from issue of shares in respect
of rights issue

Share issuance costs

Repayment of borrowings

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing

activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

of year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Pledged bank deposit and
cash and bank balances
Less: pledged bank deposit
Less: bank overdrafts

Cash and cash equivalents

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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2023 2022
—E=F —E-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
4,095 4,090
4,095 4,090
329 11
(861) (65)
24 160
(508) 116
(187) (11)
(628) (580)
(349) 305
(4,222) (5,222)
(442) (289)
14,919 =
(1,115) =
(3,175) (3,251)
4,801 (9,048)
8,388 (4,842)
(6,157) (1,315)
2,231 (6,157)
26,639 18,133
(14,757) (14,570)
(9,651) (9,720)
2,231 (6,157)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

Kingland Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 January 2015
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its shares have
been listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 16
December 2016.

The Company’s shares are currently listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Dealings in the shares on the
Main Board commenced on 12 June 2018 pursuant to the
approval granted by the Stock Exchange for the transfer of
listing of the shares from the GEM to the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

The address of the Company’s registered office is
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and the
Company’s principal place of business is Flat B, G/F., Fu
Hop Factory Building, 209 and 211 Wai Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
is principally engaged in the provision of concrete
demolition services in Hong Kong and Macau mainly as a
subcontractor.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company, and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March
2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

21

2.2,

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
as otherwise stated in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the accounting policies of the
Group.

Changes in accounting policies

) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
The Group has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts

the October 2020
and February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)
Amendments to Definition of
HKAS 8 Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related
to Assets and
Liabilities arising
from a Single
Transaction

International Tax
Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules

Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.2. Changes in accounting policies (continued)

U

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

Except as described below, the application of
the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current year and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments
narrow the scope of the recognition exemption
of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12
Income Taxes so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:

(i) the Group has applied the new
accounting policy retrospectively to
leasing transactions that occurred on or
after 1 January 2022;

(i) the Group also, as at 1 January 2022,
recognised a deferred tax asset (to the
extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be
utilised) and a deferred tax liability for
all deductible and taxable temporary
difference associated with right-of-use-
assets and lease liabilities.

The Group recognised the deferred tax
assets associated with the lease liabilities of
approximately HK$593,000 and HK$715,000
as at 1 January 2022 and 31 December
2022 respectively and deferred tax liabilities
associated with the right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$593,000 and HK$715,000
as at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022
respectively on a gross basis but it has no
impact on the Group’s financial position as
the related deferred tax assets and liabilities
continues to offset for the purpose of
presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position. There is also no impact on
the Group’s performance and the accumulated
profits at the earliest period presented.

e BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.2. Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(i) Amendments to existing standards not yet
adopted
The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to Sale or Contribution
HKFRS 10 and of Assets between
HKAS 28 an Investor and its

Associate or Joint
Venture'

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale
HKFRS 16 and Leaseback?

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities
HKAS 1 as Current or Non-

current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5

(2020y?
Amendments to Non-current Liabilities
HKAS 1 with Covenants?
Amendments to Supplier Finance
HKAS 7 and Arrangements?
HKFRS 7
Amendments to Lack of Exchangeability®
HKAS 21

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
a date to be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of all amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct to activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker. The chief
operating decision maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors that makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.6

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Foreign currency translation

U

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates, are generally recognised in
profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on a net basis.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the end
of that reporting period;

o income and expenses for each
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

o all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replace. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives or lease term,
where applicable, as follows:

— Plant and machinery 25%
— Furniture and fixtures Over shorter of lease

term or 20%
— Office equipment 20%
— Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These
are included in the profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.9

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Financial assets

U

(i)

(i)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”), or
through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
OCI. For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
(i) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

o FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI except
for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses), and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it
arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.9

Financial assets (continued)

()

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking
basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (i.e. 30 days
past due).

For trade receivables and contract assets,
the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables and
contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
contract assets relate to unbilled work in
progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for
the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss
rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

Impairment on other receivables is measured
as either 12-month expected credit losses or
lifetime expected credit loss, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If a
significant increase in credit risk of a receivable
has occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of, a financial asset and
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes
in the operating results of the debtors
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.9

Financial assets (continued)
(iv)  Impairment (continued)

° significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
debtors, including changes in the
payment status of debtors in the Group
and historical credit loss experience

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
contractual payments are 365 days past due.
The Group has rebutted the 90 days past due
presumption of default based on reasonable
and supportable information, including the
Group’s credit risk control practices and the
historical recovery rate of financial assets over
90 days past due. However, the Group may
also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group.

A financial asset is credit impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred or when
a debtor fails to make contractual payments
more than 365 days past due.

2.10 Offsetting of financial instruments

2.1

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting
the contractual cash flows using the effective interest
method and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less provision for impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.1

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Trade receivables (continued)

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Trade receivables are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against credit impairment loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts (if any).

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payable

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowing and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.15

2.16

Borrowing and borrowing costs (continued)
General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of each reporting period in the countries
where the Group operates and generates taxable
income. Management periodically evaluate positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.16

2.17

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is not probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to the lease liabilities
and the related assets separately. The Group
recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease
liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and deferred tax
liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Employee benefits

) Retirement benefits
The Group operates a defined contribution
plan and pays contributions to a privately
administered pension insurance plan on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for
the employer MPF contributions expected to
be offset as a deemed employee contribution
towards the LSP obligation in terms of HKAS
19.93(a) and it is measured on a net basis.
The estimated amount of future benefit is
determined after deducting the negative
service cost arising from the accrued benefits
derived from the Group’s MPF contributions
that have been vested with employees, which
are deemed to be contributions from the
relevant employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of such obligation can be
made.

2.18 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.19

2.20

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Contingent liabilities and continent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resource will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain events not wholly within the control of
the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (continued)

2.21

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group
has transferred to a customer that is not unconditional.
It is assessed for impairment in accordance with
HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

Revenue from construction contracts is described
in the accounting policy on construction contracts
below.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis using the effective interest method,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the
Group as a construction contract when the contract
relates to construction work under the control of the
customer and therefore the Group’s construction
activities create or enhance an asset under the
customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the contract is
recognised progressively over time using the output
method, based on direct measurement of the value
of contract work performed, provided that the value
of contract work performed can be measured reliably.
The value of contract work performed is measured
according to the completion of specific detailed
components as set out in the contract. Variations in
contract work are recognised as contract revenue to
the extent that the modification has been approved
by the parties to the contracts and it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that are
expected to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.21

2.22

2.23

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Construction contracts (continued)

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A
significant financing component may exist regardless
of whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated
in the contract or implied by the payment terms
agreed to by the parties to the contract.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to purchase of
property, plant and equipment are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the expected lives of the related assets.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

The Group leases various office premises, plant and
machinery and motor vehicles. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 24 to 60 months.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

Annual Report 2023

2.

EHEERBEASHBEESN (H)

2.21

2.22

2.23

BEAN(H)
REERZERE @ HREFREEERIRE (1T

AR EE R ) MiBENNRERESEFPHK
AEETREARENS  MAKEEEEHE
VREMREEAmIREBLSE - RREBERT
EHREEEARENRD - TwRNAHFTARRZT
XA KIFTHITT 9 E B SR RS R E AR A D
THEFEEABERD

BT FEBY
= BEH0A IR T IE A AT U BY B A SR B4 & P A MY
WIRME - BUF Rt B S i L X PR

S5 B 7N A5 B 0 T o B A0 S B X 78 B it B O A
AT RN HENIEEAER -

BERBEDE BELRENBFHDONEEEE
MIEHMRANEREN R R M A2 EY S
REER

HE
HERAEEAEAZEEEEE RERREMAE
BENMAEAE-

AEEBEZERLEWE  BE RE[ARITE -
HESHZBEEHR —RR24E60EA - HE K
ISR E R EE R - I A BFEZ AT RMER & IGE
H-BREBARAZEERE CEMER N
HEBHETSEIMEMNRE - BEEETSBER
§iinii

HEMNRERBEFR NN TETIR  WEE
HIBEZMNE (WMAAEEBENERIFRN)
Al AR ARIEEEER = - BMERFABEAER
DU BRI P IR OGN - B R R B AT
EAREEARBEUEENEEMTESMMBAS
BEEIESS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. RBEEREASHBEER (E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.23 HE (&)

2.23 Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments).

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

Each lease payments are allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability and any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date. The right- of-use asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles
of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other
payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of
the investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. RBEEREASHBEER (E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Related parties 225 BER
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: BEAATETHERTHRAERNERGRHE
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that @ HARZBATREHNATHERFEE M
person’s family and that person: ZBAT
0] has control or joint control of the Group: () 9 7 52 [ 9 7 42 ) 4R o 2 R o
(i) has significant influence over the Group; (i) HEAEBHEBERTESN =k
or
(i) is a member of the key management iy AAXEERIAEESRATNETEERE
personnel of the Group or of a parent of EEE
the Group;
or B4
()  the party is an entity where any of the following (o) RERATEGER RlZAA—EE:
conditions applies:
)  the entity and the Group are members () ZEBERAEEAR—SEMNKER
of the same group; Al
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture iy —ERASEEMNBELAXEE
of the other entity (or of a parent, TEHS—EENERF  WELQF
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the SKERWEB AR
other entity);
(i)  the entity and the Group are joint (iii %%E"E‘i%&&"’ili’]ﬁﬂ FE=ZANE
ventures of the same third party; B
(v)  one entity is a joint venture of a third vy —ERBAR—F-—HEBEMNEEDHE-
entity and the other entity is an associate ME—ERAZE-—HEEMBER
of the third entity; al s
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit V) HEBAAEENEAEBEEHEEN
plan for the benefit of employees of BEEMNEBNRZMBOBBEENT
either the Group or an entity related to £l
the Group;
(v the entity is controlled or jointly Vi) FZEBZ(@FHNALTED g ERE
controlled by a person identified in (a); il
(viij  a person identified in (a)() has significant i) @OFTHEAMNMOALTHZERBITFEERXR
influence over the entity or is a member HE SUAZER(IZREBNEA
of key management personnel of the AMEEERAER R
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and
(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group (viip ZEBIHEMEEKEAFRME
of which it is part, provides key ZEBABRBETAEENIAEEZ
management personnel services to the (SN
Group or to the parent of the Group.
Close members of the family of a person are those R-ALZEDRGEREBERBAITEZALRE
family members who may be expected to influence, BETEEIRNEERIZATREZBRREN
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with =)
the entity.
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of
financial risks: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(@  Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s interest-bearing financial assets and
financial liabilities. The Group are exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rates bank balances, bank overdrafts
and bank borrowing and fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rates bank deposits,
other borrowings and lease liabilities. The
directors of the Company continue to monitor
the interest rate exposure of the Group.

The fixed rate instruments of the Group are
insensitive to any change in market interest
rates.

Management does not anticipate significant
impact to interest-bearing assets resulted from
the changes in interest rates, because the
interest rates of bank balances are relatively
low and not expected to change significantly.

The Group consider the cash flow interest rate
risk relating to its variable-rate bank overdrafts
and bank borrowing is insignificant.

The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

@

®)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank borrowing and
bank overdrafts. A 100 basis point increase
or decrease is used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. If interest
rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year ended 31
December 2023 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$117,000 (2022:
HK$125,000).

No sensitivity analysis has been prepared
for the exposure to interest rate risk on the
Group’s bank balances and deposit as the
directors of the Company consider that the
exposure is minimal.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Macau and
Hong Kong with most of the Group’s monetary
assets, liabilities and transactions principally
denominated in HK$ and Macau Pataca
(“MOP”). The Group is exposed to currency
risk arising from currency exposures primarily
with respect to MOP, mainly attributable to
the exposure on outstanding receivables and
payables denominated in MOP.

Most of the MOP denominated monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are held under the Group’s subsidiary
in Macau. As MOP is pegged to HKS, the
management of the Group consider that the
foreign currency risk is insignificant, and hence
they do not engage in any hedging activity.
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3. HBEEBREEH)

31 HMERBEZ(H)

@
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(©

Credit risk

Credit risk arises mainly from contract assets,
trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposit and cash and bank balances. The
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in the event of the counterparties’ failure to
perform their obligations as at the reporting
dates in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The Group’s trade receivables and contract
assets are subject to the expected credit loss
model.

While cash and cash equivalents, other
receivables and deposits are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss was immaterial
because the counterparties are reputable.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
contract assets have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade receivables for
the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss
rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of
12 months and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified payment pattern,
creditworthiness, the past collection history of
each customer, the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of the
counterparty and default or significant delay
in payments to be most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates
based on expected changes in these factors.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(©

Credit risk (continued)

The loss allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets were determined as follows:

31 December 2023
Expected loss rate
Gross carrying amount -
trade receivables (HK$'000)

Gross carrying amount -
contract assets (HK$'000)

Loss allowance (HK$'000)

31 December 2022
Expected loss rate
Gross carrying amount -
trade receivables (HK$'000)

Gross carrying amount -
contract assets (HK$'000)

Loss allowance (HK$'000)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

3. HEERER(H)
31 HMEEREBEZ (&)
© 1EEREEE
BSRKFBERENEENEBEREETN
™
11030 31t0 90 91 to 365 Over 365
days days days days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
k] k] k] ok
ik 1£30A 31Z90H 91E365A 365ALE st
“E-=E+CR
=+-8
AHEER 0.33% 0.42% 0.87% 12.95% 100%
BERE-ZHEKTE
(FB7) 2,325 4,236 2,286 139 5,155 14,14
BEAE-ANEE
(F#r) 16,816 - - - 3,168 19,984
EEEE(TET) 63 18 20 18 8,323 8,442
11030 311090 91 t0 365 Over 365
days days days days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
ki jak ki ki
A 1E30H 31290H  91E365H 365 AL Feh
—E-CE
+=A=1+-H
AHEER 2.35% 5.00% 1.80% 4.52% 100%
BERE-25EKE
(FH#) 1,814 4,742 945 310 5,283 13,094
BEAE-SNEE
(T 13,088 - = = 3,319 16,407
EEEE(TET) 350 237 17 14 8,602 9,220
SHEEERERAT —ZE_=FFERE
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3. B S R ks B ()
3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMERBEZ(HE)
(c)  Credit risk (continued) (© 1EEREE(E)
The closing loss allowance for trade receivables BEHRWFERGHNEEN _ZT_=FR_
and contract assets as at 31 December T oF+ AT+ —AMEBREBIER N
2023 and 2022 reconcile to the opening loss EVIEEBENEERNT
allowance are as follows:
Trade Trade Contract Contract
receivables receivables assets assets
Life-time ECL Life-time ECL Life-time ECL Life-time ECL
(not credit (credit (not credit (credit
impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired)
EEY e BREE

BN BESEWXRE 2HEY BHEE
FEER EHEY FEER EHEY
(LEEE FEER (AEEE FEER

) (EE&HE) wE) (EERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT FHET FHET
Opening loss allowance at RZBZZ_F—A—HBW
1 January 2022 B EERE 50 5,370 94 1,922
Transfer to credit impaired EBREEE W @ 2 (14) 14
(Decrease)/increase in loss FAREREROER
allowance recognised in profitor /& (/J'JZ / 0
loss during the year 253 (55) 202 1,384
At 31 December 2022 RZTEZZF
+=-A=+—H 301 5,317 282 3,320
Transfer to credit impaired s Zf TE (36) 36 = =
Decrease in loss allowance FAREREROER
recognised in profit or loss during & {# J&’J\
the year (200) (198) (228) (152)
At 31 December 2023 RZTZ=F
+-A=+—H 65 5,155 54 3,168
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

e BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

3. HBEEBREEH)

3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMERBEZ(H)
(c)  Credit risk (continued) © 1EEEE (&
As at 31 December 2023, no customer (2022: RZZEZ=F+=-A=+—H0 BHEEF
no customer) which individually contributed (ZZZ=F BEXP) @S rEENE
over 10% of the Group’s trade and other SREMERREARGHNEEGRER
receivables and contract assets. 10% -
Other than concentration of credit risk on BREXHEBRNE S REMEBEVRIBENLRE
trade and other receivables and contract HNEERFTHIR EXEBRENABEREE
assets disclosed above and liquid funds which ARG RFBRENRTHORBDESHEER
are deposited with banks with sound credit BEFI AEBTEFMEMEERRSE
ratings or good reputation as disclose above, RERER -
the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.
(@  Liquidity risk @ TEBELEE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor AEBNBREATHEERRERBHAORE
current and expected liquidity requirements B2FE R THRRAEEEBENNER & H
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves H UWENEESBERBRBHEST K -&
of cash to meet their liquidity requirements in BEMEE BRFAEEEREMNBE s RR®
the short and long term. Management believes ZEYMREZERHEES BWHESKRD
there is no significant liquidity risk as the B Rk -
Group has sufficient financial cash and cash
equivalents to fund their operations.
The following table details the remaining THRAMFEENEHEENSREHRD
contractual maturities at the end of each BTETOREBRER  DRFTORTRBRES R
reporting period of the Group’s financial E(BREFERATHONES (BEAZE) SRS
liabilities, which are based on contractual R EIEAR R EMA ST ) RAEE
undiscounted cash flows (including interest AN RFERBTE
payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on current rates at the end
of each reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group may be required to pay:
On demand Total Total
Effective or within Between Between  undiscounted carrying
interest rate oneyear  1to2years  2to5years cash flow amount
RERS FTERE
ERAE -/ 1228 2E5F RELE BEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
At31December2028  W=FE-=£+=A§
=t+-H
Trade and other payables & 5 R E {1 fE( 3B - 23,245 - - 23,245 23,245
Amounts due to directors ~ [EREZFE - 3,613 - - 3,613 3,613
Bank overdrafts RITEY 4.9% 9,651 - - 9,651 9,651
Lease liabilities HEaE 5.3% 4,569 3,865 80 8,514 8,095
Borrovings o 4.6% 2,732 . - 2,732 2,732
43,810 3,865 80 47,755 47,336
At31December2022  R-ZE-ZF+=f
Sz 15
Trade and other payables &5 R E MR A - 24,085 = = 24,085 24,085
Amounts due to directors BN ZZ B - 3,962 - - 3,962 3,962
Bank overdrafts ROEX 4.6% 9,720 = = 9,720 9,720
Lease liabilities HEARE 4.8% 3,964 2,505 2,113 8,582 8,062
Borrowings B8 51% 5,907 - - 5,907 5,907
47,638 2,505 2,113 52,256 51,736
SHEBEZERERAT —Z=FFERS
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3. B % LB B 2R ()
3.1  Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMERBEZ(HE)
(@)  Liquidity risk (continued) @ mBELEE(E
Bank loans with a repayment on demand BEBREZREEBRFIOHRITE R A Ll
clause are included in the “on demand or BN R ERS—FAIHRA - R =
within one year” time band in the above T_=F+ZA=+—H ZERTEXKY
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2023, BRI AREA 52,732,000 T (ZFE - —4F:
the aggregate carrying amounts of these 5,907,000 L) - EREAE BB R
bank loans amounting to approximately ERERARITIRAIITHEBIGEZ KA
HK$2,732,000 (2022: HK$5,907,000). Taking KEX BERERAZERITENBRRE
into account the Group’s financial position, RipEAMBERSERER  SHEFBHY
the management does not believe that it is RT*:
probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The management believes that
such bank loans will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements, details of which are set
out in the table below:
Maturity Analysis - Bank loans with a Ao -—RERSERABREREERK
repayment on demand clause based on RHRITER
scheduled repayments
Total
Less than undiscounted Carrying
1 year 1-2 years 2-5years  Over5years cash flow amount
KRRE
SME 122F 2E5% BB5E REAH RE®
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FiEr FiER FiEr TR TR
31 December 2023 —E-=
+ZA=+-H 1,824 994 - - 2,818 2,732
31 December 2022 - S -3
+=B=1-H 3,386 1,823 992 - 6,201 5,907
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders, to support the Group’s
stability and growth; to earn a margin commensurate
with the level of business and market risks in the
Group’s operations and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares, obtain new borrowings or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as the total loans
and borrowings and lease liabilities as at each year
end divided by the total equity as at each year end.

The gearing ratios of the Group are as follows:

Total debt (G
Total equity W 48
Gearing ratio Bl

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the
consolidated financial statements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Impairment of financial assets and contract
assets

The loss allowances for financial assets and
contract assets are based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period.

o]
o B

4
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

B %5 LB ()

32 HBHAFXEHE

AEENEAER I ZABRRREASEHEEAE
B AR B RIRREH LR S AR BNIRE R
B PREE AR SR BIE 2 R KF R 5 E B AR
EHERMNE  THFRENERNEBUREER
B

RERXARERER  AERETREHBIRMNRR
MRS MERREEE S  BITHKR - REH
BRI EEENRKER -

AEBENABLEREREER - L RRBREF
ERNEEREEEREE 8 ERIARS FE RN
R E -

AEESMBELERMT
2023 2022
—EBCo=F i

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TR

20,478 23,689

23,385 8,263

88% 287%

BEARGHEE RAE

REER A TS R AT A0 5T R K & B AT A - I
RigBELRIEMERZETHG  BREXSTERAE
EREEMERKEMHNTAN - REE - HE GG
BEVEBEERERER - AT EYRFEANEE
LAaERmEBKENIENEARRBN G RERES
I ©

() ERMEERAGNEENREE

EREENANEEBBRBENDENERENRR
RIBHERENBRREL - REMERR  AEE
RIBEBERSE  RETRRATE G BBH
BEHZ SRR MERREFENE ABE -
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

4,

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Progress towards of completion of construction
contracts
The Group recognises its contract revenue over
time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation of the end of
the reporting period, measured based on the surveys
of work performed to date of the individual contract
of construction works relative to total contract value.
Because of the nature of the activity undertaken in
construction contracts, the date at which the contract
activity is entered into and the date when the activity
is completed usually fall into different accounting
period. The Group reviews and revises the estimates
of contract revenue, contract costs and variation
orders prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Management regularly reviews
the progress of the contracts and the corresponding
costs of the contract revenue.

(c) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is an objective evidence of impairment. When
indication of impairment is identified, management
prepares discounted future cash flows to assess
the difference between the carrying amount and
their value in use and provided for impairment loss.
Any change in the assumptions adopted in the
discounted cash flows would increase or decrease in
the impairment loss and affect the Group’s net asset
value and profit or loss.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue and other income and gains recognised during the
year are as follows:

4.

5.

EREHEF R HE (8)

(b) TEREESWZEE

AEESEZRREMREEMEXNBOEENERER
—REBHEAERESOKE  TRIBFZETEZER
BHESEETIEMAERANEENASHE -
EREEANMETIREMNME  aHITRITUN
RS TR BB —RER TR A - K&
EREAETTH RN RMEFTSZES NN E NS -
BHRAREEIRR G - BEETHRAALE
AR A KW ERARA o

() FEMEERME
AEBEESNEERE MR WE - BB RRMEIA
MEREEEZRAENEEREATERERR
BB HRETR - AEEESRERRNBRES
MEBAEREEREERABEZHANEZRL A
EER - RN M EPRA 2 MR BB EME
PR SBHREBREMNSHI REERAEEZE
EFENES -

Wi - Rt AR WSR2 EE R

FRH YA R EMRA R KR ERIAT -

2023 2022
—E-= —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Revenue Wz

Provision of concrete demolition services AR B T E AR 121,186 75,662

Other income and gains H A R Wz
Sundry income HIEUA 249 35
Interest income F B WA 329 11
Government grant BT 78 B 80 1,565
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment H& ¥ % - FE k& E K= 24 160
682 Tt

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did
not recognise any government grant (2022: approximately
HK$1,405,000) in respect of COVID-19-related subsidies
of Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong
Kong government. All grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group is complied with the
conditions attaching and that the grants will be received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

Timing of revenue recognition

Types of goods or services
Concrete demolition services

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
The Group provides concrete demolition services to
customers. Such services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over-time as the Group creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced. Revenue for these services is
therefore recognised over-time using output method, i.e.
based on surveys of the relevant services completed by
the Group to date with reference to certificates issued by
customers or payment applications. The directors of the
Company consider that output method would faithfully
depict the Group’s performance towards complete
satisfaction of these performance obligations in these
contracts under HKFRS 15.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 and the expected timing
of recognising revenue are as follows:

Revenue from construction contracts to be
recognised:
Within one year —FRA

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the board of directors of the Company. The board of
directors regards the Group’s business as a single operating
segment and reviews consolidated financial statements
accordingly. Since this is the only operating segment of
the Group, no further analysis for segment information is
presented.

&3 4 0]: 535
Over-time £ 3E — BRI )

EmSRBEER
R+ I E AR5

e BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

Wi Rt AR KSR 5 EES (F)

REEFEANKRRSDIF
2023 2022
—E-= —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
121,186 75,662
121,186 75,662

EFEHANBEHER

FEERFFPREMABRLIFIRS - BFARBHEI RN
—RERRNERNENEE  REAAEBERIEIRT
—IHEE M BEEEAERREAFATPES - Fit
ZERBOWRAN —BRBARBESEZER  BRE
AEBESAEROERRBENBAET2EHFT P EH
VEESANAERF ARAESRR/ESESP MM
AEBEREEREEMBREEYEISHRETZEAD
THEHNEE -

TREEFENNBTERINEENREE

RIBZ=FR-_BE-__F+-_A=+—HB5BEEHT
BHEMECREKRII D KREK) HRFHEHBERRED
TEHARERE AT ¢

1 T HERZ LA M

2023 2022

o R = -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
47,240 72,079

TEEERREECBNRANBANELES -EEGHRAE
SEMNEBRE-—KRE0H  THEEMRSSMBME -
HRUEAAEENE - KEDH REE2IHBEH
B — DA o
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical information

The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong and Macau.
The Group’s non-current assets are principally located in
Hong Kong. The Group’s revenue from external customers
is derived from the following regions:

Revenue (by location of customers)

- Hong Kong
- Macau

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group are as follows:

Customer A

Customer B

Customer C

Customer D

Customer E

Customer F

{ The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the

total revenue of the Group.

6. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank overdrafts
Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on borrowings

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Wi Rt ARKEAR D EES (F)

hEER

AEEIZNEFERRFILE AEENRBEEE
BEURESR - AEERBIMBELPHREREATHE

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FH&T
W (REPFEHE)
—&F 121,186 75,655
— R - 7
121,186 75,662
FEEFEH
MAREEBWREBIBI0%NEPWEZHAT ¢
2023 2022
—Eg2-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
BEA 37,426 N/A!
TR
B 16,510 N/A!
@A
C 13,799 N/A!
@M
®FED 13,552 N/A!
TR
E N/A!
TER" 12,667
EFF N/A!
TER? 8,892
' HEBT U 25 30 SE 1 T2 AR 25 109 AL o
A A
2023 2022
—E-=F = 2 slifes
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
RITEZF L 469 336
HEadds 442 289
BEFE 201 244
1,112 869
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
frE B RS ER R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

Included in cost of sales
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Staff costs

Included in administrative and other operating
expenses
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Expense relating to short-term leases not

included in the measurement of lease liabilities

Staff cost, including directors’ emoluments

7. BREASHAERN (EFE)
2023 2022
—E=E —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
HERANBIE

M WERBRETE 4,787 6,875
FAEEETE 679 1,600
8 TR 30,653 21,667

THREMEEHRAT BIE
ZE AT BN & 690 630
ME - BEREBITE 449 240
FAEEERTE 3,545 3,351

*u‘l‘}\?ﬂ \E\fﬁﬂﬂl»im
R ERENRAY 720 720
BIRA(BIEESHMH) 16,401 14,894

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2023, amount excluded
short-term director quarter lease expense of approximately
HK$694,000 (2022: HK$756,000) which are included in “Staff
costs, including directors’ emoluments” above.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Mt REEZZ_=FF+-A=+—BULFE «BTBETA
EXTETRA(BREEHFH I NEREEEEIHERID
694,000 7T (=T = =4 : 756,000 7C) °

BEEFHX  BREEEHE

2023 2022

—E-=F T F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits (Note) e o 2By &Ei\ﬁﬂ &7 () 45,847 35,300
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET &4

— defined contribution plan —E R qu gl 1,207 1,261

47,054 36,561

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme in
Hong Kong which comply with the requirements under the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Schemes Ordinance. All
assets under the scheme are held separately from the Group
under independently administered funds. Contributions to
the MPF schemes follow the MPF Schemes Ordinance.

During the years ended and as at 31 December 2023
and 2022, no contribution was forfeited (by the Group on
behalf of its employees who leave the defined contribution
schemes prior to vesting fully in such contributions) and
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

AEBERERHEAES (RES]) FHBGHINRE -
EE/’E REEEMSKEE - R BB THREEERE

SEREREAASENEESDRIFA - BEDTEH
/TMEHF?iF FHEUEBIZRTT o
REBE-_T— *i&_f**¢+ A=+—BI&E

REX - 1 &3 R R ERERE BB BE A
B 82 B R) AR A R E A MR
BHOKF -

SBREEEZERARAR —2O=FFERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZEZ=ZT =

=F+-A=+—HILFE

9. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

(a)

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of each director and the chief
executive for the years ended 31 December 2023

and 2022 is set out below:

2023

Executive directors

Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (Note (i)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond

Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin

Mr. Chow Chun To

2022

Executive directors

Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chan Yuk Sing (Note (ii))

Mr. Chen Yeung Tak (Note (ii)

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (Note (i))

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond

Mr. Chan Kwok Wing Kelvin

Mr. Chow Chun To

Notes:

(i) Appointed on 24 June 2022 and resigned on 31

December 2023.

(ii) Resigned on 10 June 2022.

9. EEFEMRER
(@) EBRTETHAEMS
BEERFBETHRABREBEZE_ZE-_=ZFK=_F%
ZZF+Z A=+ ALEFENHFHEINOT
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2ER RIRGE
ne BNEAN METEAL A @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THET AT TET THT
—EC-=E
HITEE
RBREE
(FEFETHAZ) - 2,014 - 2 2,016
Pt s () - 1,200 - 12 1,212
BUHHTEE
BEREE 240 = = - 240
BREIR L4 240 - - - 240
PRBELE 240 - - - 240
720 3,214 - 14 3,948
—EC-CE
HITEF
RHBRAE
(FEFTHAEZ) - 1,356 - 11 1,367
PR A% 5 A (PR (i) - 848 - 8 856
BRADAE 5 A (PSR (i) - %8 - - 98
St 5 () - 623 - - 623
BUHHTEE
EEMLE 240 - - - 240
BREIRE A 240 = = = 240
PRELE 240 - - 240
720 2,925 - 19 3,604
Hiat -
(i) RZFEZ—ZFAA-+HBEZEIR=_T==F
+ZA=+—H&IT-
(ii) RZTZ—FXA+HEE

(i)

Mr. Chen Yeung Tak has been resigned with effect from
24 June 2022. Detail of his remuneration acting as the
director of the Company is disclosed above. Besides,
Mr. Chen Yeung Tak is also the financial controller and
company secretary of the Company and his remuneration
for the services provided are HK$978,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil). Neither
the chief executive nor any of the directors has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2022: three) of them are directors for the year
ended 31 December 2023 whose emoluments are
disclosed above. The emoluments in respect of the

e BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE
9. EZEMRER(HE)

(@) EBERTETHAESHE (A)

HE_Z-_=F+_A=1+—BUFE A£ET
BREEINETAMNE  (EANAREESRANE
BHNESHIEABBREE (S -__F &) - H
E-ET-_=F+-A=+—RALFE HEZTET
BAEREERELREREZEWRTAMNE (=F
TZF ) e

(b) ZERSFMAL
BE_Z_=F+-_A=t—HLFE EE&ES
FWMALTHMRE(ZZEZZF: =ZR)REF - HF
WRBENREX -BE-ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HIt
FE HBTI=FZ(ZZEZ=ZF : WB) ALHFM

remaining three (2022: two) individuals for the year S8
ended 31 December 2023 are as follows:
2023 2022
—_g=-= —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Salaries and allowances e &5%55 4,867 2,318
Discretionary bonuses H‘J 5L 198 =
Retirement scheme contributions RARE 1';' HIR 39 36
5,104 2,354
The emoluments fell within the following band: HFMNFIATEE :
Number of individuals
AE
2023 2022
—E-=F T
Emolument band =g
Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 = % 1,000,0007% 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T = 1,500,000 %8 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7T & 2,500,000 7 7T 1
During the year ended 31 December 2023, no REBEE_T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE  £5E

emoluments were paid by the Group to the above
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office as a director or management of any members
of the Group (2022: Nil).

BLEE R A £ %F@H/\ifiﬁ@ﬂﬁ?ﬁ?%bukﬁi‘%
EWDJ\ZIK%&E%%EDEWEZ%ZF%IEHEXE
MEFKERENHBHE(CT__F: &) -

SBREEEZERARAR —2O=FFERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

10.

INCOME TAX CREDIT FBBiESR
2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Current tax B HA 5 18
Hong Kong: BE
— Under-provision in prior year —BAFERETR - 113
Macau: SEPY -
— Over-provision in prior year —BAFERERE - (342)
Income tax credit i8Rk ® - (229)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had no
accessible profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong for
both years.

Macau profit tax is levied at a fixed rate of 12% on the
taxable income above MOP$600,000.

The taxation on the Group’s loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong
Kong profits tax rate as follows:

ST E S E A Ty Bt 4 5 R AR B A R A R
16.5% 515 » AR AKB N EFEALBAEETBELR
REBBOERTUEN MW BB BBFSHAIELERE -

S P9 15 55 41 #2838 600,000 38 P 85 1Y & 3R 75 U A 3% 129% &
TE B AU -

AREBERFAEHATB R RIAEEBEBNBRRE
EENERESBIEANEZRMT

2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETS B ATE R (E18) 1,318 (9,261)
Calculated at a tax of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) B FE16.5%
BT 1 165%) it E 217 (1,528)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes T —I REMB A 210 265
Income not subject to tax BARBUWA (162) (260)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBIEEE BETE 24 574
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised B 8 5t Ail 7 i 52 7 T8 &5 18 (785) =
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences AERAUMRERNEEEZRETE
not recognised 487 901
Effect of different tax rate of group entity BN ERELENEEE S
operation in jurisdiction other than Hong Kong T ﬂ BENTE 48
Over-provision in prior year WA FEBERE - (229)
Income tax credit IZIEC YRz - (229)

Kingland Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE SREF, (F5E)
2023 2022
—EB-=F —F-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
(Restated)
(&731))

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners RAREE AEREF, (BE)

of the Company (HK$’000) (F#&mT) 1,318 (9,032)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R EERAEF,(BR)MEH

for the purpose of calculating earnings/(loss) TR T E (FAR)

per share (in thousand) 232,331 221,805
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) BREKRATR, (EB1E) &) 0.57 (4.07)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares of
232,331,076 (2022: Restated as 221,805,303) in issue
during the year, as adjusted to reflect the effect of the share
consolidation and the Rights Issue as disclosed in Note
19. Comparative figures have also been adjusted on the
assumption that the share consolidation and the rights issue
had been effective in the prior year.

The diluted earnings/(loss) per share is equal to the basic
earnings/(loss) per share as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary share in issue during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

FABBITETRBRMINEFHEA232,331,076 8 (=&
— TR EF) /221,805,3030%) ¢ B AR B A SR Bt
19T BN GD A O R A WE - L RBFIRE K
MAHRERER E—FEERNBRTAFE -

HREE—ZT =GR -_T-__F+-_A=1+—HLHF
ERTECRITELHEL R RNEREERF, (EH
B)EREFRERAT, (BE) -

SBREEEZERARAR —2O=FFERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

12.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 December

12 MELA

TERRRZZEZ=FK

—E-_—F+-A=+—B8K

—_=

2023 and 2022: BARIEE
Principal
Place of incorporation activities and Particulars of Percentage of
Name and kind of legal entity place of operation issued share capital interest held
2R aME IR R EEERER TEERRBERY  CRORARE igsz: 314
Platinum Faith Limited (Platinum Faith”) Limited liability company incorporated in Investment holding Ordinary share United 100% (direct)
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") States dollar
(US$")1,000
HEERAA (98] REBRAEE (RBRAEE)) RERER EBR1,000%7T 100% (E#)
M BRA A (IEx)
Alpha Eastern Holdings Limited (*Alpha Eastern Holdings”) Limited liability company incorporated in Investment holding Ordinary share US$1 100% (direct)
the BVI
SRERARAT ([2RER]) REBRRBESHMA LN ERAT RERR Lak1ET 100% (Ef%)
SRS T EEERAF (ranslated as Kingland Limited company incorporated in Macau Provision of concrete Ordinary share 100% (indirect)
Concrete Driling Company Limited) (‘Kingland Macau’) demolition services in MOP$25,000
Macau
RWERTEBERAR ((RERM]) REFEMR I ERAR REFRWERLRE  LRK250008F%  100% (FH)
fR%
Kingland (Sino) Company Limited (*Kingland (Sino)’) Limited liability company incorporated in Provision of concrete Ordinary share HK$3 100% (indirect)
Hong Kong demolition services in
Hong Kong
R (KR Z) BRAF (8 (K9 E)]) REBEMRINHERAR RERREERLFE LBR3%ET 100% (%)
%
Dragon Team Ventures Limited Limited liability company incorporated in Investment holding Ordinary share 1009% (direct)
the BVI US$1,000
Dragon Team Ventures Limited REBRLHSHMRLIHERAT REER iRk 1,005 100% (E%)
[T Construction Limited Limited liability company incorporated in Provision of construction  Ordinary share 100% (indirect)
Hong Kong related services HK$10,000
EERERRAR REAEMKINERAR REREAERS £ER10,00087T 100% (%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
At 1 January 2022
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At 1 January 2022
Charge for the year (Note 7)
Disposals

At 31 December 2022

Net book value
At 31 December 2022

Cost
At 1 January 2023
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2023

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At 1 January 2023
Charge for the year (Note 7)
Disposals

At 31 December 2023

Net book value
At 31 December 2023

A
i Sy R =
NE
HE
R-ZT—-—
+-A=+—8
ZHTERRE
R-ZZ-_—f-H—-A
FRZE (T
HE
RZE-Z
+=-A=1+-8
FEFE
RZE-_—F
+=-A=1+-8
5%
R-ZE-_=F—Hf—H
RE
HE
RZBEZ=F
TZRA=+-H
ZHERRE
R-_Z-=F—F—H
FRZE (KT
HE
RZTZ=F
+-A=+-8
REFE
RZTZ=F
+-A=+-8

R AL

Ny

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

13. Y¥ - BERZHE
Plant and Furniture Office Motor

machinery and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
BE RS BRREE RRERE AE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx TR THx FET TiER
57,569 4,425 321 11,774 74,089

- 55 - - 55
- - - (347) (347)

57,569 4,480 321 11,427 73,797
43,185 3,965 271 10,622 58,043
6,121 160 19 815 7,115

_ - - (347) (347)

49,306 4,125 290 11,090 64,811
8,263 355 31 337 8,986
57,569 4,480 321 11,427 73,797
453 408 - = 861
(268) - - - (268)
57,754 4,888 321 11,427 74,390
49,306 4,125 290 11,090 64,811
4,450 434 15 337 5,236
(268) - - - (268)
53,488 4,559 305 11,427 69,779
4,266 329 16 - 4,611

SBREBERERAT B ZFFERSE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

13.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

During the year ended 31 December 2022, in view of the
loss sustained by the Group, management considered
indicators of impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets existed at 31 December 2022
and performed an impairment assessment thereon with
reference to valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the estimates of
recoverable amount were determined based on the value-
in-use calculations. Management uses cash flow projections
based on the most recent financial budget after taking into
accounts the operation environment and market conditions
at the point of time. The key assumptions for the value-
in-use calculation are those regarding the discount rate,
revenue and direct costs. As at 31 December 2022,
management estimates the discount rate of 22% using pre-
tax rate that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the cash-generating
unit. Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past
experience and expectations of changes in market.

Based on the impairment assessment conducted by
management, no impairment losses were recognised on
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
respectively in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2022 in order to write down the carrying amount
of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
to their recoverable amounts.

As there was no indicator of impairment existed at

31 December 2023, no impairment assessment was
performed.

Annual Report 2023
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NE BERRBUREAEEE ZBEMN K

RBE-E-_—F#+-_A=+—BILEE ENKEE
SZMEER TEERLE UE BERREARERAE
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RAABURE AT B RHEEDEREREESEETE -
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T-A=t—H EEERAAURKRANMSHEEE
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35 S B A B 1 AR B BORRTEHA -

REEEEBETZRENG BE_T__F+_A
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14.

RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSETS

Cost
At 1 January 2022
Additions
Disposal

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At 1 January 2022
Charge for the year (Note 7)
Disposal

At 31 December 2022

Net book value
At 31 December 2022

Cost
At 1 January 2023
Additions
Disposal

At 31 December 2023

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At 1 January 2023
Charge for the year (Note 7)
Disposal

At 31 December 2023

Net book value
At 31 December 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
frE B RS ER R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

14.

PR 7R

RZZEZ—F—F—H

nE

HeE
RZZE-——_F+=-A=+—H
BErERRE
RZTE-——F—F—H
FRZH (FEE7)

HE
RZZE-——_F+=-A=+—H
BRESRE
RZEZZF+=ZRA=+—H
BN

R-TE-—=%F—A—H

NE

HE
R-ZZE-_=F+-A=+—H
B ERRE
R-TE-—=%F—A—H
FRZH (FM&E7)

HE
R-ZZE-_=F+-A=+—H
BREFE

RZEZ=F+=RA=+—H

The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income relating to leases:

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Interest expenses on lease liabilities
Expense related to short-term leases (including

director’s quarter)

ERREENRE
HEREF BN

(BREEEESR)

Short-term leases are leases related to premises.

FEREEE
Office Plant and Motor

premises machinery vehicles Total
MOAEYE KERKSE RE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET FHT
5,778 5,328 5,051 16,157
4,334 - - 4,334
(8,226) - - (3,226)
6,886 5,328 5,051 17,265
2,185 3,798 1,231 7,214
2,522 1,419 1,010 4,951
(8,226) - - (3,226)
1,481 5,217 2,241 8,939
5,405 111 2,810 8,326
6,886 5,328 5,051 17,265
2,401 1,854 - 4,255
(2,553) - - (2,553)
6,734 7,182 5,051 18,967
1,481 5,217 2,241 8,939
2,716 498 1,010 4,224
(2,553) - - (2,553)
1,644 5,715 3,251 10,610
5,090 1,467 1,800 8,357

EREEENEHAITE -

RxcEahAtEENERERAZEHEE 2SR

HEREERH R

2023 2022
—8g=-= e il

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHT

4,224 4,951

442 289

1,414 1,476

RHHEEEYEEENEES -

SHREEZERARAR

—Eg=

=FFEERSE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

15.

16.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets SREE
Amortised cost B S PK AR

Financial liabilities cRBeE
Amortised cost B SRR

CONTRACT ASSETS

Contract assets ABHEE

Less: allowance for credit losses

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because
the rights are conditioned on factors other than passage
of time. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional.

Retention receivables included in contract assets
represents the Group’s right to receive consideration for
work performed and not yet billed because the rights are
conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by
the customers over a certain period as stipulated in the
contracts. The contract assets are transferred to the trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional, which
is typically at the expiry date of the period for the provision
of assurance by the Group on the service quality of the
construction work performed by the Group.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal
operating cycle.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected credit loss provision
for contract assets. To measure the expected credit losses,
contract assets have been grouped based on same credit
risk characteristics.

See note 3.1 for further information about expected credit
loss provision.

Annual Report 2023
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16.

B EEEERE

REREszeMIA
2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
40,341 28,549
47,336 51,736
EHNEE
2023 2022
—EBZ=F —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
19,984 16,407
(3,222) (3,602)
16,762 12,805

AREETEZEAREMRC ERMALAKRENTIER
BB ORI TR - RS 1 R BUR R IR 5 B e 2
SMEE - ERAKABEGEE  ANEEEBEES
JE W3R -

FARKBENRUERSEASRERD M AL A
ﬁEﬁEﬁI&HﬁZHN&‘FE’J%ﬂ RABZEENEAERF %3)5
RENRENE THRAYREEEBRTRERTAEER
”‘EZ%%?’FUW%EIﬂiﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ’\zﬁil?ftﬁi&ﬁﬁ’ﬂi
ETRMRGEERUFRIEHRNEREY) ENEE
BREEHREFE -

FEEBZEANEEDEARY AAREEBAHE
RELEZERHRNERZEEE -

AEEEARBHBHREELFIFARENBLCITES
HHEEBBRAREE  ZEWATRANEERRS
HENEEBREEE RABHHNEERE SHEE
TREARRE SRR OME -

FHAREEEREENE—SER  F2HMES1 -



17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: allowance for credit losses

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Notes:

The credit terms granted to customers are varied and are
generally the result of negotiations between individual customers
and the Group. The Group generally allows a credit period of
within 60 days. No interest is charged on overdue receivables.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for
credit losses based on invoice date, is as follows:

0-30 days 0ZF30H
31-60 days 31£60H
61-90 days 61ZE90H
91-365 days 91 % 365H

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected credit loss provision for trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, these receivables have been
grouped based on same credit risk characteristics.

See note 3.1 for further information about expected credit loss
provision.

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$6,605,000 (2022: HK$5,737,000) which are
past due and which impairment loss had not been provided for to
be of good credit quality and they are expected to be recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
Include in the past due balance of approximately HK$121,000
(2022: HK$296,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is
not considered as in default based on good repayment records
for those debtors and continuous business with the Group.

B 5 EUWGRIA
B EEBERE

Hip IR - me RIAMN R

e BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

ESRHMERKE
2023 2022
—E=F T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHT

14,141 13,094

(5,220) (5,618)

8,921 7,476

6,173 5,080

15,094 12,556

BEFRPZEERSETR  —RAENRFEAEEERS
o AEE—RETE0RRNZEEN - WEM BB KKIEA
WER RIS o

B 5 UG (MR EEBRER) RERAHNREAITNAT :

2023 2022
—B-=F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,302 859
5,232 2,642
1,144 3,675
1,243 300
8,921 7,476

FEERAEEMEREEANEORARENGLITELTED
EREEBREE ZENAHRE ZRRFRER2HRY
EEBREE - S ERHMEEER  ZEFRRFETIRENR
REEREFEHDLE -

EHEHEEBERENE-—SER  F2HME31 -

R-BE-_=F+-A=+—8 FEEBEFRKFBLHEE
48 85 T {8 496,605,000 7T (=T = — 4 : 5,737,000/ 7T) K &
WA BaBEYEHERERERENERFEAERLT
EEESE  BHEHATKE - RERT TEESRBALE
fAIHE I G - BHERAE #4249 121,00058 70 (=T = — 4 : 296,000
JT) B0 A £ BERABZSEKKENRITER
MR EEAEBSEITER T TR ABELD -

SBREEEZERARAR —2O=FFERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

18. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK 18.

BALANCES AND BANK OVERDRAFTS

Pledged bank deposits (Note (i)
Cash and bank balances

Less: bank overdrafts (Note (i)

Notes:

BBEBITER
Re RIBITH %

(PR EE ()

B ERITHE ST (P FE i)

Hsz

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank deposits were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities and bank
borrowings. The pledged bank deposits carry interest rates
ranging from 0.625% to 4.200% (2022: 0.001% to 0.625%) per
annum.

The Group’s bank overdrafts carry variable interest rates ranging

from 4.625% to 4.875% (2022: 4% to 4.625%) per annum.

19. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
As at 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023 of HK$0.01 each

Additional authorised share capital (Note (a))
Share consolidation (Note (a))

As at 31 December 2023 of HK$0.05 each

Issued and fully paid
As at 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023 of HK$0.01 each

Share consolidation (Note (a))

Issue of shares in respect of rights issue (Note (b))

As at 31 December 2023 of HK$0.05 each

Notes:

19. KR

SEIE
W—_ZE-_—#F—HF—H"
T F+ZA=1+—
Z2-=%—-A—8"

FREE0.01/ET
#I8ETE IR A (T (a)
Bt & of (i EE (a)

RoF-=f+-A=t—

ERMEEO0C.05%E T

ERITRHER
R-_T-_—_F—HF—A8-

= b= pgeE s = el S e

o e = R
FRMEEO0.014 T
W&t & 0f (FH 3T (a))
SRR TR (BT E ()

% Sae el e

QE@O 054 7T

wfit -

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 17 May 2023, i) increase in
authorised share capital of the Company from HK$10,000,000
divided into 1,000,000,000 shares to HK$20,000,000 divided into
2,000,000,000 shares by the creation of additional 1,000,000,000
new unissued shares; and ii) every five issued and unissued
shares of HK0.01 each were consolidated into one consolidated
share of HK$0.05 each, the changes took effect on 17 May 2023.

Annual Report 2023

@

BEARTER HeREBTEBURRTES
2023 2022
—E-= —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
14,757 14,570
11,882 3,563
26,639 18,133
(9,651) (9,720)
16,988 8,413

R-ZBE-=F+-A=+—R  AEENHRTFREERER
AEBRTRERRITEENEAR - SEMRTERIZERN
9 F0.625% £ 4.200% (= F = =4 : 0.001% £ 0.625% ) &t

o

AREEMRITEIREZBHA X
T A% E4.625%) R B °

T 4.625% E 4.875% (=&

Number of Share
ordinary shares capital
EBEREE B
HK$'000
FHT
B X
1,000,000,000 10,000
1,000,000,000 10,000
(1,600,000,000) -
E ’
400,000,000 20,000
A&
806,400,000 8,064
(645,120,000) -
80,640,000 4,032
E ,
241,920,000 12,096

RER-_Z_=FRA+HHEEARAREEIAEG HBBH
TBIRAEE 0 0) B B8R 1,000,000,000 & K B ATHAY - AR
B #9575 % A% 7N 3 10,000,000 7T (53 & 1,000,000,000 A% A% 17
# 1 & 20,000,000 7% 7t (5 4 2,000,000,000 i% B 13) ¢ Kii) #%
BRARTREE00 BTHEBITRARBEITRNEHAE—RE
MREEC.0SBTMAHRG EHR T _=FRA+tA4K -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(b) On 6 April 2023, the Board of Directors proposed to conduct the
rights issue on the basis of one rights shares (“Rights Share(s)”) for
every two shares held on the record date of 30 May 2023 at the
subscription price of HK$0.185 per Rights Share (“Rights Issue”),
to raise gross proceeds up to approximately HK$14.92 million,
and after deduction of Rights Issue expenses of approximately
HK$1.1 million, by way of issuing up to 80,640,000 Rights
Shares. The Rights Issue became unconditional on 23 June 2023
and was completed on 29 June 2023.

RESERVES

Share premium

Share premium is the excess of the proceeds received over
the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued at
a premium, less expenses incurred in connection with the
issue of the shares.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the reserve arose pursuant to the
corporate reorganisation for the purpose of the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 22 November
2016 as to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to provide additional incentive to the eligible participants
under the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may
at their absolute discretion and subject to the terms of
the Scheme, grant options to any employees (full-time or
part-time), directors, consultants or advisors, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of the Group, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. The eligibility of any participants to
the grant of any options shall be determined by the directors
from time to time on the basis of the directors’ opinion as
to their contribution to the development and growth of the
Group.

The aggregate number of the Company’s shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share options schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
No options may be granted under the Scheme or any other
share options schemes of the Company if this will result in
the limit being exceeded. The maximum number of shares
issuable upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company as from the adoption date must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of all the shares in issue upon the date on
which the shares are listed and permitted to be dealt in the
Stock Exchange. The 10% limit may be refreshed at any
time by approval of the Company’s shareholders in general
meeting provided that the total number of the Company’s
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share options
schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshed limit.

e BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

19.

20.

21.

B 7 (48)
et ()

(o) RZZEZ=FMARA EFFRFRNCHAR (2T ==
FRA=1H) BEHEMBRRMNELE —RERRN (THRRH 1)
HyE A DU REE B S IR ARAR 15 0.185 B T /T A% (T AR]) -
FiR 1T % 80,640,000 REMR RN EEMGHIBLEERZ L
1492 B BB T (EMBRHEBRBAZHIAEEST) - HRHR=F
—EERNACH=BRAEKHER-_T_=FA=1+AIA
SERK °

f#E

B4 EE
Pt e B HE 4208 (B 17 B MR PR IS RIB A R B AR
ENERE NRBTROAEENFRX

BHHRE
BHREBEARNARRMNNB I EMRBELCEXEEAM
EENREE -

BRETE

ARERBER-F—RNF+ A+ -_HBBZRER
REREERT S ([%A38))  BERMNRBEZERA
BRAZ Bz A ER2EERIEINEE -

RigZat s ARAREZA R RHBERZE 2GR
AASEEMNES (ZBIFER)  EEF  ARANEM -
DT AR HER KB X5 BEBHIURS
HEREERBARA RN 2 BRE - BEER TEHRE
HRLBSHEURAEEBRREREZEBMEEREE
Rk BE -

R IR 5% 5t 8 KA 1 A LA E A BB AR R =1 81 2 1% 8 i
RITEZAABTEINBERERTEMA THITZAR
AR AH  TREBHARRNECHTRND Z30% °
T AR 8 % AT B B 7R 2 R A o Ath 8 AR St B3R R A A
SEHBHZ LR MASEOERE - SRA A HE
BEZAERARAREREMBRESEREZMA
BREETEMATHRTZBOBE LR aHTEE
HERORBRAEmREEEERME2MBETRNOZ
10% © 7% 10% L BB AT BE B 0 RER K & 2 AR 2 A IR Rt e
BT AEF - HERREZET 8 A R AHEE b BB I i
PRI 2 A B REEITEM A T 38T 2 AR BN
%‘( A BEBEEHELEN LERE A ART D HITHRND
10% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

21.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) under the Scheme
or any other share option schemes of the Company in any
12-month period up to date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue. Where any further
grant of options to a participant under the Scheme would
result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and to be granted to such participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the shares in issue, such further grant must be separately
approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with such participant and his/her close associates
abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates must be approved by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee).
Where any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or any of their respective close associates
would result in the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to such person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue and having an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved by the Company’s
shareholders at the general meeting of the Company, with
voting to be taken by way of poll.

The offer of a grant of share options might be accepted in
writing within 7 days from the date of the offer. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the directors may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.
A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option with a remittance in favour of the
Company within such time as may be specified in the offer
(which shall not be later than 7 days from the date of the
offer).

The subscription price shall be a price solely determined
by the board of directors of the Company and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; (i) the
average closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date; and (i) the
nominal value of the Company’s share on the offer date.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on 22 November 2016, subject to early
termination provisions contained in the Scheme.

No share options were granted since the adoption of the

Scheme and there were no share option outstanding as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.

Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

BORROWINGS 22, B8

2023 2022
—E=F —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Bank borrowing (Notes (i) & (ii)) IRITEE (M) &) 2,732 5,393
Other borrowing (Note (i) Hub e & (Bt Gi) - 514
Total borrowings BEE 2,732 5,907
Analysed as: DA

Non-current liabilities EREBER - S
Current liabilities mENBE 2,732 5,907
2,732 5,907

Notes: Hiat -

(i) The effective interest rate on the varibale-rate bank borrowings
were ranging from 3.6% to 7.2% (2022: 3.4% to 7.0%) per
annum as at 31 December 2023. The Group’s bank borrowings
are secured by pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$14,757,000, corporate guarantee of HK$8,000,000 as
issued by the Company, and personal guarantee provided by the
director, Mr. Cheung Shek On and the former director, Mr. Chan
Yuk Sing.

(i) The other borrowings carried fixed interest rate at 5.7% per
annum and are secured by motor vehicles with carrying value
amounting to approximately HK$813,000 as at 31 December
2022. The other borrowings were fully repaid during the year 31
December 2023.

(iii) All bank borrowing of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and
2022 contain unconditional repayment on demand clauses and
are included in current liabilities.

0] R-ZZEZ=F+=-A=+—8 ZERTEEZERFINEN
FB6%ET72% (ZFZZF : 34%E7.0%) - REBERITE
Bl ERRITERL14,757,000/8 70 - AAREEHZ ¥R
8,000,000/ 7T & BRBLF A RATEBRER L ERY
Z A AR IR -

(i) RIE-—F+-A=+—H HtEERETFMNEL7%
StERAREMELSI3000B T ABEER BE_F =
F+ZA=Z+—HLFE HUfEERTHEER -

(iil AEMR T -_=FR-_T-_—F+=-A=+—RZHMEHRT
BEOHAREREGHETNERLHARDALRE -

LEASE LIABILITIES HEEE
2023 2022
—EB_-=F —E__F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Lease liabilities comprise: HEsERR
Within one year —FR 4,250 3,630
In more than one year but not BE—FETBAME
more than two year 3,766 2,366
In more than two years but not BEMFENEBRF
more than five years 79 2,066
8,095 8,062
Less: amount due for settlement with 12 months  J&t : WA BBE FTFIRAM12@A R
shown under current liabilities EBEMEIBAFOE (4,250) (3,630)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months RIERBEBETIRAN12ME A%
shown under non-current liabilities Py ikl - EF /91 3,845 4,432

For both years, the Group leases various offices, motor
vehicles and plant and machinery for its operations with
lease term of 2 to 5 years (2022: 2 to 5 years). Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

RREFERN  AEBEEZEARAIE  REURKEE
KR ELERT  HMR2ESF (ZE-_—F 25
5%F) o HE MR RE R EEWRE - I B BT RER
Nt - AEEHB LG A HEHENRER - K
SERBAMNESR  WETAHARIMITHOMME -

SBREEEZERARAR —2O=FFERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

23. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 23. HEEE A
At 31 December 2023, lease liabilities of approximately RZZE-_ZF+-_A=+—H HEAE#2,702,000%
HK$2,702,000 (2022: HK$2,593,000) are secured by L (ZEZZF : 2,503,000 L) NHASEBER - ==
the Group’s motor vehicles and plant and machinery with F+-_A=Z+—HZEEELHAS267,000F T (=ZF
carrying amount of approximately HK$3,267,000 (2022: T4 12,921,000 70) 2 B A KRB KR EE R o
HK$2,921,000) as at 31 December 2023.
24. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 24. BUNHB
Government grants have been received towards the cost E RS AN R T B © S RE 2 AR ERIRIEW A ©
of machinery. The amount has been treated as deferred ZHRERHEEENAERAFHANEREEIRA - 58K
income. The amount is transferred to income over the REEE AW 80,000 T (ZF = =4 : 160,000 /7T) ©
useful lives of the relevant assets. This has results in a RZTEZ=F+=—_A=+—HB BT (ZZT=_=_F:
credit to income in the current year of HK$80,000 (2022: 80,0007 7T ) A & 55 -
HK$160,000). As at 31 December 2023, HKS$Nil (2022:
HK$80,000) remains to be amortised.
2023 2022
—E-= —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Analysed as: DA
Current mE - 80
Non-current IR ED - >
- 80
25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25. JRIEFIBE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the years REENELEHIBEAEZBHOT
are as follows:
ECL Tax Lease Right of
provision  Taxlosses depreciation Liability ~ Use assets Total
BHEE
BERE BEFE BERE HERE GRAEEE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FTET TET FET TET
At 1 January 2022 W-B--%-F—H 23) (1,084) 1,107 - - -
Adjustment (Note 2) AE(f3E2) - - - (598) 593 =
At 1 January 2022 (restated) R-ZE-—F—A—H(E5) 23) (1,084) 1,107 (593) 593 -
Charge/(credited) to profit or loss R 1Bk /(5 )\ 23 804 (827) 416 416) -
At 31 December 2022 (restated) R=—ZT=-—F+-A=+—H
(Z71) - (280) 280 (177) 177 =
Adjustment (Note 2) B (fiE2) - - - (715) 715 =
At 1 January 2023 (restated) RZZE-=F—A—H (&%) - (280) 280 (892) 892 -
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss 7 1B##% / (Gt A) (B 10)
(Note 10) 2 280 (280) 52 (52) 4
At 31 December 2023 =t it ) - - - (840) 840 -
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26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$116 million (2022:
HK$121 million), which are available for offset against
future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely
and are subject to approval from the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department and estimated unused tax losses of
approximately HK$15 million (2022: HK$15 million) arising
from subsidiaries operating outside Hong Kong which
are available to offset against future taxable profit of that
subsidiary and due to expire within one to three years and
are subject to approval from the Financial Services Bureau
of the Macau Special Administrative Region. In addition, the
Group has deductible temporary differences associated with
decelerated tax depreciation amounting to approximately
HK$1.2 million (2022: HK$NIl).

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset
been recognised in respect of the estimated unused tax
losses and the deductible temporary differences associated
with decelerated tax depreciation due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Accruals and other payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice
date is as follows:

0-30 days 0£30H

31-60 days 31260H
61-90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days 90 H M E

Trade payables are non-interest bearing.
AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts due to directors are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

B 5 N RIA
e R E o R 5 5RIA

e BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

25.

26.

27.

ELERIE (])
RB|ER  AEBOGEHAPDEREBENA116E8 8
BL(ZTEZZF 121 5&B7r) - A ERHBAE UK

RFGEF - EERBEERE RO E MAEEES
BUM R CENBAREENGES RSB BEEIE
HEBIEEBBT(CTE-_—F 158588 T) » AlHEH
ZHBRARMAKERREMNIR —ZE=FREH 1
ARERBRPBERTRETRBMILE - N REEE
R ETEREN A MR EEEN1 2588 T
(ZF==%F: T -

RS HIR - ERBETRR R A0S FI AR - BB st 5 5t

%E%ME%E&EH R TE T & 75 A Y BT 00RO
EERREERIEEE -
ESRHEMEMNRKE
2023 2022
—E=E T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
16,354 13,581
6,891 10,504
23,245 24,085
BIEREHHENBEZENFIERESTOT ¢
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$’000 HK$ OOO
781 1,473
948 331
1,856 1,007
12,769 10,770
16,354 13,581
B S ENRIBREE -
ERESBNRE
ENEZEERIEABRER T EWARERKER -
SHEEERERAT —ZE_=FFERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 28. WmEBRLEREXRMT
CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net (@) KBRABHAZHHEKLLEEENESFENYER
cash generated from operations
2023 2022
—_g=-= —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Profit/(loss) before income tax BETSRANER, (EE) 1,318 (9,261)
Adjustments for: BTy S EFAE
Depreciation of property, plant and W BEKRETE
equipment 5,236 7,115
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 4,224 4,951
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BB KR HERE
equipment (24) (160)
Other non-current liabilities HadEREAaE 15 ©1)
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment losses £ REE KA HNEE
on financial assets and contract assets BEEE (R B (778) 1,784
Interest expense FBHXZ 1,112 869
Interest income FBUA (329) 1
Amortisation of government grants R #6 Bh 2 85 (80) (160)
Operating profit before working capital BBECBEATKCERT
changes 10,694 5,036
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets BREEEM R (3,577) 1,115
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other E SR E IR IE (), R
receivables (2,140) 6,035
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 & E B HRIER (882) (8,096)
Net cash generated from operations REFEBNRESTE 4,095 4,090
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b) BMETHEENEEHIER:
activities:
Amounts
due Lease
to directors  Borrowings liabilities
EAEERE BE HEaE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_F—H—H 3,657 9,158 8,950
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEBNE - - 289
Addition from new leases REHHEEZRE - - 4,334
Cash flows BenE 305 (3,251) (5,511)
At 31 December 2022 TS i iy S e e [ 3,962 5,907 8,062
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE - - 442
Addition from new leases REMEEZARE - - 4,255
Cash flows RERE (349) (3,175) (4,664)
At 31 December 2023 R=-Z-_=%+=-H=+—H 3,613 2,732 8,095
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28.

29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(c) Cash outflows for leases:

Amounts include in the statement of cash flows for
leases comprise the followings:

Within operating cash flows
Within financing cash flows

Total cash flows for lease

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to
control, jointly control or exert significant influence over the
other party in making financial or operational decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject
to common control or joint control. Related parties may be
individuals or other entities.

(@) Apart from disclosures elsewhere and in note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements, the Group did
not have any significant related party transaction with
related parties during the year.

(b)  The emoluments of the directors and senior

BREERERE

BREERERE

HERTREAR

e BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE
28. WMEBRLRERMT (F)

() HERERE:

FAREREXRZEESHEBIBEUTRE

2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
1,414 1,476
4,664 5,511
6,078 6,987

2. BAEAFRSB

BT RZEARIES - BA S RAEEHBM B E
ERRBRHEMTTEEAZENNAL - MEER
HRmbIEBAES - TRRAES - BES A AE
AREMER -

@ FREMMBTRESMBMKRME7THREIN - K
SERFAL BEMERENTETHEABESTR
5 °

b EFERSARAEBAEMEIEEEAR)RFAN

executives (representing the key management T -
personnel) during the year are as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e ERERHAME R 10,886 9,268
Retirement benefits schemes contribution RIRENET IR 106 111
10,992 9,379
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30. HARER

The Group, in the ordinary course of its business, is involved
in various claims, suits, investigations, and legal proceedings
that arise from time to time. Although the Group does not
expect that the outcome in any of these legal proceedings,
individually or collectively, will have a material adverse effect
on its financial position or results of operations, litigation is
inherently unpredictable. Therefore, the Group could incur
judgements or enter into settlements of claims that could
adversely affect its operating results or cash flows in a
particular period.

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at the end
of the reporting period.

AEBERAFEBRIED S R IRELNSIARE FR -
AEFERREF - BEAEBE L N ERERZZTERF
REVEER (BRER AR S8 EMBRRREERE
BRAEFMERTNZE  EFAR T HIATA - ELt - &
SEF SRR LARAT I REMAE - MATgEHEX
—HHNKREXEA RS REBUTNTE -

AEBENREHPRLBESAXABE -

SBREEEZERARAR —2O=FFERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HZE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 31. XLAFHMBRRARRFEEEE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position (@) HBMRRE
2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REBRRZIZE 9,768 9,768
Current assets REEE
Prepayments TERT B 291 336
Cash and cash equivalents BeRR2EEY 9,923 1,650
10,214 1,986
Total assets EEHAE 19,982 11,754
EQUITY ER
Capital and reserves EARE HE
Share capital &N 12,096 8,064
Reserves ] 1,652 (2,728)
Total equity RSB 13,748 5,336
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H b FE T 5RIB 455 639
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEBE R B IE 5,779 5,779
Total liabilities =Rt 6,234 6,418
Total equity and liabilities BEREEH8E 19,982 11,754
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (AR FE 3,980 (4,432)
Total assets less current liabilities EERABERRBERE 13,748 5,336

AAGHBERRAEER _E-_MFE=A =+ A%
EESHERBENE  THATIEERERESE

The Company’s statement of financial position were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 26 March 2024 and signed on its behalf

by:
Cheung Shek On Tam Tak Kei Raymond
RBR EER
Director Director
B EEa
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31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
frE B RS ER R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZT_=F+_A=+—HIFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 31.

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movement

Balance as at 1 January 2022
Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2022

Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of shares in respect of rights issue

Share issuance cost of rights issue

Balance as at 31 December 2023

KATMBRRERR FHESE (F)
(b) RE2D
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B E 2T B8R st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
RZEZ—F— A —H&&EH 64,575 (64,972) (397)
FAEEREERAS L
- (2,331) (2,331)
WZE_—_F+_A=+—H
RS 64,575 (67,303) (2,728)
FRNEEREHERZLE
- (5,392) (5,392)
AR EEITIRD 10,887 - 10,887
MR AR D BT AR (1,115) - (1,115)
R=—®¥==f+=A=+-A8
B &R 74,347 (72,695) 1,652

SHREEZERARAR

—ECC=FFERSE
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Financial Summary
MBS

RESULTS )

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group R RERGEMBEBRECAEERBERAMBRFEENE
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited BURBEERBEREFHINOT -
consolidated financial statements is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-_A=+—HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=F —T_-— —E-—F Z—ZT-TFE —T—NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET FHET FHT FHET
Revenue & 121,186 75,662 101,673 108,852 100,937
Profit/(loss) attributable to RRRHER AEL
owners of the Company HH(E5E) 1,318 (9,032) (41,003) (66,070) (24,657)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
R+=-ZA=+—8H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=f T ZET=Z—F ZEZEZTF ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET FHET FHET
Total assets BEME 71,463 60,806 74,455 100,868 137,338
Total liabilities BEREE (48,078) (52,543) (57,160) (63,831) (34,231)
Total equity T AAEE 23,385 8,263 17,295 37,037 103,107
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